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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Councilman Charles Barron, Chair of the

          4  Committee on Higher Education.  I wanted to welcome

          5  you to a very, very, very extremely important

          6  hearing that we're having today.  Most of my

          7  colleagues, it's a very busy day at City Hall, we

          8  all sit on several Committees, so they'll probably

          9  be coming in and out when they have the opportunity.

         10                 We did want to get moving on this

         11  particular issue.  We consider it a very, very

         12  critical issue in the country and certainly for

         13  college students and certainly for women in

         14  particular, but for all those who are involved in

         15  intimate partnerships and have to deal with

         16  violence, whether it's mental abuse or physical

         17  abuse, but some form of violence.

         18                 So, we just think that it's very,

         19  very important for CUNY students to have an

         20  opportunity to express this, for the Administration

         21  to share with us and we had a very, very, very, are

         22  fortunate to have some of the greatest policy

         23  analysts in Miss Shauneequa Owusu, please give her a

         24  big hand, clap, I like clapping at my Hearings.

         25                 At my Hearings, you may clap, you
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          2  could laugh a little, you can compliment me, of

          3  course, if you'd like.  There will be no criticism,

          4  we don't allow that at my Hearings, only saying nice

          5  things about me.  If you have bad things, it will

          6  not be permitted here.

          7                 For our lawyer and counsel, Miss

          8  Baaba Halm, we want to give her a big hand, clap

          9  too.  These two young ladies are very, they're not

         10  just policy analysts and counsel.  They're very,

         11  very concerned members of our community and come up

         12  with some great ideas for Hearings.  This is their

         13  idea to do this.  I like giving credit where credit

         14  is due and I give me credit for being open enough to

         15  receive it.  So, as a team, we work very, very well.

         16                 Often times, many of the Hearings

         17  that we have and all of the credit I get for

         18  sounding intelligent with speeches and with the

         19  information that they gather for me.  They do all

         20  the work, I get all the credit and they make me look

         21  much smarter than what I really am, as brilliant as

         22  I am, they make me look much smarter, so I just want

         23  to always give credit where credit is due.  I'd like

         24  to publicly thank both of you for all the work

         25  you're doing with Higher Education.  You've
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          2  certainly taken us up on another level.

          3                 To my staff person and legislative

          4  director, Ms. Joy Simmons (phonetic), who works

          5  very, very closely in making sure out of these

          6  Hearings that some legislation is developed and

          7  legislation is developed City- wide or district-

          8  wide or any legislation that concerns citizens of

          9  New York that comes out of our office is usually

         10  initiated by Miss Joy Simmons.  So, please give her

         11  a big hand, clap too.  Let them see you Joy, stand

         12  up, there she is.

         13                 I want to thank Council Member Miguel

         14  Martinez from Manhattan, give him a hand, clap, for

         15  coming all the time, being a strong supporter.

         16  John, put the papers down and clap your hands, don't

         17  be banging on our furniture.  That doesn't count.

         18  Don't bang on our furniture.  Oh, that's better?

         19  It's a little louder, huh?

         20                 I'd like to read my opening statement

         21  for the official record and then proceed with the

         22  testimony from CUNY Administration first and then

         23  all those who want to testify.

         24                 Good afternoon and thank you all for

         25  being here today.  I'm Charles Barron, Chair of the
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          2  City Council's Higher Education Committee.

          3  Committee Members include:  Council Member Tony

          4  Avella, Council Member Gale Brewer, Council Member

          5  Miguel Martinez and Council Member Larry Seabrook,

          6  join me and welcome you to today's Hearing entitled

          7  Intimate Partner Violence:  How are Colleges

          8  Equipped to Respond?

          9                 Today's topic is timely because

         10  October is Domestic Violence Month, Domestic

         11  Violence Awareness Month.  We believe that it is

         12  important for this Committee to consider how

         13  domestic violence impacts college students and post-

         14  secondary institutions.

         15                 Intimate partner violence affects

         16  more than 32 million Americans and is defined as

         17  rape, physical assault, intimidation, stalking,

         18  perpetuated by current and former dates, spouses and

         19  cohabiting partners.  Such abuse can occur among

         20  heterosexual or same sex couples, does not always

         21  involve sexual abuse or assault.  Intimate partner

         22  violence can vary in frequency and severity, ranging

         23  from one incident to chronic, severe abuse.

         24                 According to the Bureau of Justice

         25  Statistics, the highest rate of intimate partner
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          2  violence is among women among the ages of 16 to 24.

          3  At least one in five college students reports some

          4  form of physical violence and abuse in their present

          5  and/or past dating relationships.  At least one in

          6  three college couples will be involved in at least

          7  one incident of violence during the course of their

          8  dating relationship.

          9                 The impact of intimate partner

         10  violence on victims can be quite traumatic and

         11  possibly affect a student's entire college

         12  experience.  Victims of rape and sexual assault may

         13  suffer from anxiety, depression or loss of trust in

         14  others. Stalking can provide pervasive fear, erosion

         15  of sense of safety and personal control and sleeping

         16  and eating disorders.

         17                 When victims remain in school, they

         18  may have problems concentrating, studying and

         19  attending classes.  A student may fear running into

         20  the perpetrator or an abusive or violence act and

         21  consequently avoid academic and social activities.

         22  Victims can also develop clinical symptoms that

         23  affect their mental and physical health.  Finally,

         24  victims may drop out or take a leave of absence from

         25  school.
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          2                 Although a complete picture of the

          3  prevalence of intimate partner violence on CUNY

          4  campuses is difficult to ascertain, a 2004 survey of

          5  young women between ages 15 and 24 in New York City

          6  found that a high prevalence of dating relationships

          7  were characterized by physical violence, coercion,

          8  forced sexual experiences.

          9                 Further, a recent study of incoming

         10  freshmen at a New York City public college noted

         11  that more than 40 percent of the 1,500 students

         12  surveyed experienced physical abuse and 37 percent

         13  experience sexual abuse in an intimate partner

         14  relationship.

         15                 Victims of intimate partner violence

         16  need access to resources and supports in order to

         17  continue their college pursuit and achieve their

         18  academic goals.

         19                 At today's Hearing, the Committee on

         20  Higher Education will seek to learn more about

         21  intimate partner violence and how our local colleges

         22  are equipped to respond.  With that, we'll ask for

         23  our first panel to come forward.  The CUNY

         24  Administration and we'll proceed with our Hearing.

         25                 I also want to thank Council Member
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          2  Larry Seabrook, who's a long- time supporter of CUNY

          3  and a Bronx Member of the City Council.  Give Larry

          4  a big hand, clap too, we give hand claps here,

          5  Larry.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Vice-

          7  Chancellor Garrie Moore, President Dolores

          8  Fernandez, Dean Michelle Anderson, Miss Deborah

          9  Parker.  Would you please raise your right hand.  Do

         10  you swear that the testimony that you're about to

         11  give today will be truthful and honest?

         12                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  I do.

         13                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  I do.

         14                 DEAN ANDERSON:  I do.

         15                 MS. PARKER:  I do.

         16                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Hi.  Thank

         17  you.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Okay, you may

         19  proceed.

         20                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Hi.  Thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Also, if you

         23  will, just state your name for the record.

         24                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Okay.  My

         25  name is Garrie Moore, Vice- Chancellor for Student
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          2  Development, the CUNY system. On behalf of the City

          3  University of New York, I thank you for your strong

          4  continuing support for the University and for

          5  programs that support the education of our students.

          6    Your support has served to enhance and strengthen

          7  the academic and co curricular programs that the

          8  University offers its students.

          9                 As I said earlier, my role is Vice-

         10  Chancellor for Student Development.  I am new to the

         11  City University of New York, having begun my tenure

         12  in July.  However, I am not new to working with

         13  issues of intimate relationship violence, as I have

         14  had the opportunity to deal with such issues and the

         15  effects on our students during my more than 30 years

         16  in higher education, both at the community college

         17  and senior college level.

         18                 Ensuring that our students, staff and

         19  faculty have the safest environment possible in

         20  which to live, study and work has been and continues

         21  to be an ongoing endeavor for me.  I have been

         22  involved in seeking domestic protection orders for

         23  students and know first- hand that sometimes even

         24  the best efforts don't work.  But, we must continue

         25  providing our best efforts.
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          2                 Let me give you just one example.  I

          3  recall an incident where a husband was stalking his

          4  wife.  A situation where both were students

          5  attending the same college.  Applying all resources

          6  available, banning the husband from campus, having

          7  an active domestic protective order and assigning a

          8  security officer to escort the wife to and from her

          9  car and to and from class, still resulted in the

         10  wife being shot by her husband on campus.

         11                 Yet, we know, as higher education

         12  professionals, we must continue to do our very best

         13  to provide a safe environment for our staff and

         14  students.

         15                 Joining me today are Dean Michelle

         16  Anderson, Dean of our CUNY Law School and nationally

         17  recognized authority on the issue of domestic

         18  violence.  President Fernandez, President of Hostos

         19  Community College, who brings first- hand experience

         20  serving as Chief Executive Officer of a college and

         21  Ms. Debbie Parker, Director of the Women's Center at

         22  BMCC.  Their contribution today, no doubt, will help

         23  you understand better our comprehensive approach to

         24  addressing this issue of domestic violence.

         25                 I am pleased to report that the City
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          2  University of New York recognizes the seriousness of

          3  this issue that affects so many of our students.  As

          4  a result, the University has put in place a set of

          5  policies and procedures as an institutional response

          6  to this issue.  These policies and procedures are

          7  designed to inform our University community about

          8  domestic violence issues and resources available to

          9  address inappropriate behaviors.

         10                 Among college students, nationwide,

         11  20 to 25 percent of women have reported some form of

         12  intimate partner aggression.  Over 33 percent of

         13  these aggressive acts were classified as severe,

         14  that involved punching, beating up and threatening

         15  with a weapon.

         16                 When a member of our University

         17  community requests assistance with an incident of

         18  intimate partner domestic violence, the Public

         19  Safety Department will assist the student with

         20  reporting the incident to the appropriate

         21  authorities.  For off- campus incidents, the Public

         22  Safety Department will contact the New York Police

         23  Department on behalf of the student to have a police

         24  report filed.  Campus Public Safety will also keep

         25  on file copies of protective order, if provided by
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          2  the protected parties.

          3                 With respect to on- campus incidents,

          4  the Public Safety Department will complete a college

          5  incident report and begin an investigation of the

          6  incident.  During the investigative process, a

          7  determination will be made as to how to proceed with

          8  the complaint, which can range from referral to the

          9  civil authorities or referral to the campus judicial

         10  authorities.  The complaint is referred to the

         11  Office of Student Affairs or to the Office of

         12  Faculty and Staff Relations, if it involves an

         13  employee.

         14                 The University makes every effort to

         15  work with all internal and external agencies and

         16  professionals to develop appropriate policies and

         17  devote sufficient resources to the prevention of

         18  intimate relationship violence.  Often, these

         19  professionals provide a lifeline to women and

         20  children who desperately need assistance and

         21  direction.

         22                 Specific intervention strategies on

         23  intimate relationship violence vary based upon the

         24  unique culture of each campus.  I believe President

         25  Fernandez will share that perspective.  However,
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          2  each campus offers a multi- faceted program that

          3  involves activities such as risk management,

          4  community education, victim services and tracking

          5  cases of intimate partner violence.

          6                 In addition to these activities, it

          7  is important to know that our Law School Dean

          8  provides special services as part of the Dean of our

          9  Law School, wherein Battered Women Rights Clinic is

         10  run out of her school.  She will share more about

         11  that in her presentation.

         12                 Persons who commit an act of domestic

         13  violence on campus and are affiliated with the

         14  University, either as a student or employee, are

         15  subject to University rules and regulations,

         16  including internal disciplinary proceedings.

         17  Clearly, students who are victims of intimate

         18  partner domestic violence will experience some

         19  degree of adverse effects. Exposure to such violence

         20  can have negative psychological and physiological

         21  consequences that can also affect school

         22  performance.

         23                 Just this morning, I spent over an

         24  hour with all of the counselors, psychological

         25  counselors, in the CUNY system talking about this
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          2  very issue and other issues of a psychological

          3  nature affecting our students.

          4                 We also recognize that students who

          5  are exposed to violence at home can have increased

          6  psychological problems associated with trauma and

          7  violence that may affect the learning process,

          8  memory and ability to incorporate and transfer

          9  skills.

         10                 To address psychological consequences

         11  of violence, each campus provides psychological

         12  counseling, along with a network of referral

         13  services to assist students who deal with the cycle

         14  of intimate partner domestic violence.  Many CUNY

         15  campuses have women centers that other, that offer

         16  information, support and referrals to students.  The

         17  centers also provide training workshops for campus

         18  employees and targeted groups of students on the

         19  signs that accompany dating violence.  Campus

         20  Student Affairs personnel work with public safety in

         21  monitoring the number of reports and complaints.

         22                 In June of 2004, The CUNY Board of

         23  Trustees adopted a comprehensive violence policy,

         24  Workplace Policy and Procedures that is currently in

         25  place.  This procedure requires each college to
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          2  disseminate this policy to all members of the

          3  college community, ensuring appropriate

          4  investigation and follow up of all alleged incidents

          5  of workplace violence.

          6                 The Workplace Violence Advisory Team

          7  at each campus, working with the College Advisory

          8  Committee on Campus Security, will assist the

          9  President in responding to workplace violence;

         10  facilitating appropriate responses to reported

         11  incidents of workplace violence; assessing the

         12  potential problems of workplace violence at its

         13  site; assessing the college's readiness for dealing

         14  with workplace violence; evaluating incidents to

         15  prevent future occurrences and utilizing prevention,

         16  intervention and interviewing techniques in

         17  responding to workplace violence.

         18                 This team also develops workplace

         19  violence prevention tools, such as pamphlets,

         20  guidelines and handbooks to further assist in

         21  recognizing and preventing workplace violence on

         22  campus.

         23                 I am confident that CUNY will

         24  continue evaluating its appropriate policies,

         25  programs and services to address issues of concern
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          2  regarding any inappropriate behavior on our

          3  campuses. As I stated in the beginning, this is an

          4  important issue for CUNY and for all of our

          5  institutions within the CUNY system and we will

          6  continue working towards appropriate and responsive

          7  solutions to this national problem.

          8                 I have placed the subject of today's

          9  Hearing on the October 19th agenda of the CUNY's

         10  Chief Student Affairs Administrators' meeting, so we

         11  may take a fresh look at both the topic and

         12  appropriate systematic practices.

         13                 We are indeed very grateful for you

         14  bringing this issue to us and we welcome the

         15  opportunity to further explore this very important

         16  issue as we continue providing a safe and healthy

         17  environment for staff and faculty, thank you, and

         18  students.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Thank you very

         20  much for that testimony.  I also want to acknowledge

         21  that the Council Member from Queens, a long

         22  supporter of CUNY and students, Mr. Tony Avella is

         23  here and I want to thank him.  I want to be

         24  consistent, we gave everybody hand claps, so please

         25  give him a big hand clap. I don't want to be accused
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          2  of anything.  So, we thank him for his support.

          3                 We thank you for, in your testimony,

          4  because I'm trying to get in as many testimonies as

          5  I possibly can and we do have a limited time, so if

          6  you can summarize and skip over areas as you did

          7  very well, that keeps the flow of your testimony and

          8  the importance of the information, but makes it a

          9  little more concise, I'd appreciate it very much, so

         10  we can get as many testimonies in as possible.

         11  Please state your name for the record and proceed.

         12                 DEAN ANDERSON:  Thank you very much.

         13  Good afternoon.  My name is Michelle Anderson.  I'm

         14  Dean of the Law School at the City University of New

         15  York School of Law and I'm very honored to be here.

         16                 In my testimony today, I just want to

         17  provide a brief, brief overview of what some of the

         18  current research indicates about intimate partner

         19  violence across the nation and in colleges

         20  specifically.

         21                 There's a 2000 national violence

         22  against women survey that came out that interviewed

         23  a nationally representative sample of 8,000 women

         24  and 8,000 men and some of its results are startling.

         25                 Nearly 25 percent of women and 7.5
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          2  percent of men surveyed said they had been raped or

          3  physically assaulted by an intimate partner at some

          4  point in their lives.  According to these estimates,

          5  we're talking about 1.5 million women and more than

          6  800,000 men being physically assaulted or raped by

          7  an intimate partner on an annual basis in the United

          8  States.

          9                 Across each category, women suffer

         10  intimate partner violence at a greater rate than men

         11  do.  Unfortunately, intimate partner violence is

         12  perpetrated primarily by men, that's what the

         13  studies indicate, against intimate partners, whether

         14  or not those intimate partners are male or female.

         15                 Of great importance to this Committee

         16  is the fact that the vast majority of intimate

         17  partner violence is never reported to the police,

         18  it's not reported to the authorities, it's not

         19  reported to counsel within University settings.

         20                 Only one- fifth of all rapes, one-

         21  quarter of all physical assaults and one- half of

         22  all stalkings perpetrated against female victims by

         23  intimate partners are ever reported. The studies

         24  indicate that much fewer rapes and physical assaults

         25  and stalkings of men are ever reported.  So, the,
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          2  because intimate partner violence is so under-

          3  reported generally, the researchers who were

          4  examining these problems indicate that the data

          5  probably greatly underestimates the magnitude of the

          6  problem.

          7                 So, what, I think we can conclude

          8  from this is that most victims of intimate partner

          9  violence do not trust that the criminal justice

         10  system will provide them with a positive outcome or

         11  that student disciplinary proceedings within

         12  colleges will be able to provide them with some

         13  help.  Intimate partner violence causes serious

         14  physical consequences and we can all imagine and

         15  identify what those consequences are in terms of

         16  injuries and deaths across the nation.

         17                 What you might not be able to imagine

         18  or haven't thought about before is the kind of grave

         19  psychological and emotional harm that intimate

         20  partner violence causes. Psychological consequences

         21  of intimate partner violence range from depression,

         22  which you mentioned earlier, and also particularly

         23  for female victims, suicidal ideation and suicidal

         24  behavior, which is a great problem for, particularly

         25  for younger women.
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          2                 Because we work in undergraduate and

          3  graduate schools here at the City University of New

          4  York, we must be particularly attuned to the risk

          5  factors associated with young adults of this age

          6  group.  The painful truth is that college- aged

          7  students may be most at risk for intimate partner

          8  violence.

          9                 As Chairman Barron pointed out, young

         10  women, aged 16 to 24, experienced the highest per

         11  capita rate of domestic, of intimate partner

         12  violence.  Rape is very common among college

         13  students nationwide, 20 to 25 percent of women have

         14  experienced a completed or an attempted rape and

         15  domestic violence is also common.  It's important,

         16  the term domestic violence, you tend to think about

         17  two people who are married and living in a home

         18  together, but it doesn't necessarily apply in those

         19  circumstances.  It actually applies to people who

         20  are not cohabitating or married.

         21                 More than four out of every ten

         22  incidents of physical violence actually involve non-

         23  married persons and actually there's an escalation

         24  in violence when an abusive partnership is ended.

         25  There's something called separation abuse, where the
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          2  risk for serious harm actually increases.  So, we

          3  can't think about domestic violence in isolation in

          4  terms of people who are married and cohabitating.

          5                 The data, therefore, indicate that

          6  intimate partner violence is common, though

          7  unreported, underestimated and devastating in

          8  consequence.  Additionally, unfortunately, it's also

          9  often ignored.  In terms of violence, particularly

         10  sexualized violence in this culture, we tend to

         11  think of stranger danger.  That's how we conceive of

         12  the violence against women particularly.  We have a

         13  cultural obsession with stranger danger, rather than

         14  thinking about intimate partner violence as the most

         15  common and in terms of frequency and magnitude of

         16  actual risk for women.

         17                 For example, when people are asked to

         18  imagine the average rape.  What they tend to think

         19  about is a women walking home at night and someone

         20  jumps out from an alleyway and grabs her, some

         21  stranger, read, African American is often the

         22  implicit narrative, grabs her from the street and

         23  drags her into an alleyway with a knife.  And, after

         24  the assault, she promptly reports to the police.

         25  This is the stereotypical notion of rape that we
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          2  think about.

          3                 However, the typical rape in the

          4  United States does not happen in an alleyway.  It

          5  most often happens in the victim's own home or in a

          6  neighbor's home or a friend's home. The typical rape

          7  is not launched by a stranger; it's launched by a

          8  stranger or an intimate partner.  The typical rape

          9  does not involve a black man attacking a white

         10  women.  Rape is overwhelmingly an intraracial crime.

         11                 The typical rape involves no knives,

         12  no guns, no other weapons.  Rapists usually find

         13  verbal coercion and pinning sufficient.  The typical

         14  rape does not involve physical resistance on the

         15  part of the victim.  Most victims cry and don't

         16  physically resist because they're afraid.  They

         17  become passive. Most rapes don't involve a report, a

         18  prompt report to the police or a prompt report to

         19  advisors on a campus.  Many victims never report

         20  their most harrowing experiences to authorities.

         21                 So, we have a cultural proclivity to

         22  focus on stranger danger rapes and certain kinds of

         23  rapes that are the focus of media attention, but we

         24  rarely focus on the common victim, a women of any

         25  race, who is attacked by someone she knows and she

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  used to trust.

          3                 Now, a related but different problem

          4  happens when we evaluate domestic violence and I'll

          5  just make this very brief, because I know there are

          6  a number of folks who need to comment here today.

          7  We tend to think of domestic violence only in the

          8  extremes.  We think of the husband who controls his

          9  wife and beats her to the point of death or to the

         10  point of serious broken bones.

         11                 Those incidents do happen and they

         12  are terrible. But, more often, less often, more

         13  often and more common are the circumstances in which

         14  a boyfriend is extremely controlling and jealous and

         15  hits his girlfriend occasionally when she does

         16  something he doesn't like.  So, rather than the

         17  extremes, this is the more common kind of domestic

         18  violence.

         19                 Less often still do we imagine that

         20  in a dating circumstance, after two college students

         21  have had a couple of drinks together, when the young

         22  man pins a women down and forces himself on her as

         23  she cries.  Less often do we think about that as

         24  rape or domestic violence, when, in fact, it is

         25  both.
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          2                 So, I will leave it to my other

          3  learned colleagues on the panel to discuss in detail

          4  how CUNY responds to intimate partner violence

          5  across its many campuses.  I simply want to end with

          6  note, intimate partner violence is a grave public

          7  health issue, it's a legal issue and it's a social

          8  issue that we can't ignore.  So, I want to extend my

          9  congratulations and sincere thanks to this Committee

         10  for examining this challenging and important issue.

         11  Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Thank you so

         13  much for that testimony.  I don't know if we have a

         14  copy of yours, but if we can get copies of your

         15  testimony, we  --

         16                 DEAN ANDERSON:  Certainly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  Certainly

         18  would appreciate it.

         19                 DEAN ANDERSON:  I'm a law professor,

         20  so I didn't have time to footnote every sentence, so

         21  I got all freaked out about that.  But, I will put

         22  the footnotes in and get the testimony to you

         23  promptly Council Member.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Thank you very

         25  much.  I certainly appreciate it.  I also want to
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          2  welcome Ms. Veronica McNeil, our Finance Analyst for

          3  coming.  You all know what to do, right?  Please

          4  proceed with your testimony.

          5                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Yes, good afternoon

          6  Chairman Barron and Members of this distinguished

          7  Committee.  My name is Dolores Fernandez.  I am

          8  President of Eugenio Maria de Hostos Community

          9  College in the South Bronx.

         10                 Intimate partner violence is a plague

         11  that is wrecking lives, destroying homes and

         12  ravaging our nation.  This plague is not restricted

         13  to any particular group.  Children and women of all

         14  ages are at risk and the young are particularly

         15  vulnerable.

         16                 As you know, what happens at home

         17  inevitably makes it way into the school and Eugenio

         18  Maria de Hostos Community College is no exception.

         19  I appreciate being given this opportunity to

         20  describe to the Members of this Committee how Hostos

         21  is equipped to deal with this problem on our campus.

         22                 When a student or employee at Hostos

         23  requests assistance with an incident of domestic

         24  violence, whether it has occurred on our campus or

         25  elsewhere, the Public Safety Department generates a
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          2  Public Safety Incident Report and assists the

          3  individual in reporting the incident to the

          4  appropriate authorities if he or she wishes to do

          5  so.

          6                 If the incident has occurred off-

          7  campus, the Public Safety Department will act as a

          8  liaison between the individual and the New York City

          9  Police Department, escorting the complainant to the

         10  appropriate NYPD precinct or criminal court to file

         11  a police report and/or request an order of

         12  protection.  Once the individual has obtained an

         13  order of protection, the Public Safety Department

         14  requests a copy of the document to keep on file.

         15                 The Public Safety Department also

         16  asks the complainant to provide a photograph of the

         17  alleged offender, if one is available.  This

         18  information is shared with the members of our Public

         19  Safety Force, at all roll calls for a period of one

         20  week.

         21                 The information is then placed in

         22  Public Safety Access Control Binders, with the

         23  permission of the complainant, which are kept at

         24  every entrance to campus buildings.  The binders and

         25  their contents are inspected daily by Tour
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          2  Supervisors and the officers assigned to the various

          3  entrances. Members of the Public Safety service are

          4  also instructed to familiarize themselves with the

          5  complainant's and alleged offender's names and

          6  photographs.

          7                 The assigned Pubic Safety Assistant

          8  Director conducts periodic updates of all Access

          9  Control Binders and routinely makes contact with

         10  every individual who has an order of protection on

         11  file.  This is to determine whether the victim has

         12  had any ongoing problems with the alleged offender

         13  on or near the campus, or whether the order of

         14  protection has been renewed or extended.

         15                 When intimate partner violence occurs

         16  on campus, the Public Safety Department completes a

         17  college incident report and begins an investigation.

         18    During the investigation, a determination is made

         19  as to how to proceed with the complaint. Options

         20  include referral to civil authorities or to the

         21  campus judicial authorities.  All crimes committed

         22  on campus must be reported to the Public Safety

         23  Department, which classifies the incident and refers

         24  the case to the appropriate on- campus and off-

         25  campus authorities.
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          2                 When a student or employee commits an

          3  act of intimate partner violence on campus, the

          4  individual is subject to the City University rules

          5  and regulations.

          6                 The Department of Public Safety, in

          7  collaboration with the Campus Security Advisory

          8  Committee, the Campus Violence in the Workplace

          9  Committee, the Sexual Harassment Education and

         10  Investigation Committee, as well as the offices of

         11  the Dean of Students and the Office of Student

         12  Counseling, schedules workshops and seminars every

         13  semester on domestic violence, date rape and

         14  protecting oneself from sexual assault and sexual

         15  harassment.  Posters are used to inform students and

         16  employees where to go on campus to help with issues

         17  related to domestic violence.  Educational videos on

         18  sexual assault, date rape and sexual harassment are

         19  also shown throughout the campus.

         20                 Each semester, the offices of the

         21  Dean of Students, Student Life, Public Safety,

         22  Counseling and other areas of the college conduct

         23  numerous activities and college- wide fairs, dealing

         24  with such issues as sexual assault, prevention,

         25  domestic violence awareness, sexual harassment
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          2  awareness and general health.

          3                 Public Safety Officers receive in-

          4  house training on how to recognize the signs of

          5  domestic violence and abuse. Some of these sessions

          6  are provided by the NYPD and not-for-profit

          7  organizations that assist victims of domestic

          8  violence and others are conducted by in-house staff

          9  trained to identify signs of abuse.

         10                 All CUNY students are subject to

         11  disciplinary action under the Rules and Regulations

         12  for the Maintenance of Public Order, pursuant to

         13  Article 129- A of the New York State Education Law.

         14  Sanctions for violations include admonition,

         15  warning, censure, disciplinary probation,

         16  restitution, suspension, expulsions, ejection and/or

         17  arrest by civil authorities.

         18                 In June of 2004, The CUNY Board of

         19  Trustees adopted a comprehensive Violence in the

         20  Workplace Policy and Procedure.  This procedure

         21  requires each college to disseminate this policy to

         22  all members of the campus community, in order to

         23  ensure appropriate investigation and follow- up of

         24  all alleged incidents of workplace violence, which

         25  can constitute domestic violence when it involves
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          2  employees who have or have had an intimate

          3  relationship.

          4                 The policy also requires the

          5  establishment of a Workplace Violence Advisory Team

          6  and that all administrators, managers and

          7  supervisors are made aware of their responsibilities

          8  in relation to this policy through internal

          9  communications and training.

         10                 The Workplace Violence Advisory Team

         11  at each campus works with the College Advisory

         12  Committee on Campus Security to assist the President

         13  in responding to workplace violence; facilitating

         14  appropriate responses to reported incidents of

         15  workplace violence; assessing the potential problem

         16  of workplace violence at its site; assessing the

         17  college's readiness for dealing with workplace

         18  violence; evaluating the incidents to prevent future

         19  occurrences; and utilizing prevention, intervention

         20  and interviewing techniques in responding to

         21  workplace violence.  This team also develops

         22  workplace tools such as pamphlets, guidelines and

         23  handbooks, as was explained earlier.

         24                 It is recommended that the Workplace

         25  Violence Advisory Team includes representatives from
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          2  the Campus Public Safety, Human Resources, Labor

          3  Relations, Counseling Services, Occupational Health

          4  and Safety, Legal Affairs and other areas, including

          5  faculty, staff and students, as deemed appropriate

          6  by the President.

          7                 The Public Safety Department at

          8  Hostos Community College receives between ten and 15

          9  orders of protection each year.  Three out of every

         10  ten orders of protection received are also issued to

         11  protect children of the victims who are sometimes

         12  enrolled at our Children's Center.

         13                 The Department of Public Safety often

         14  receives requests from students and employees to

         15  deny access to present and former intimate partners

         16  against whom they are seeking orders of protection.

         17  These requests are documented and filed in a

         18  separate section of the Access Control Binders.

         19                 Information on ongoing incidents is

         20  kept on file to guard against unwelcome visit from

         21  the alleged offenders until the complainant provides

         22  an official order of protection.

         23                 Information received from the

         24  complainant and/or external civil authorities often

         25  indicate that the alleged offenders are extremely
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          2  violent with a history of weapons possession and

          3  some are current or former members of an armed law

          4  enforcement agency.

          5                 In closing, Chairman, I just want to

          6  bring some names to the reality of this situation.

          7                 In 2001, Nancy was a member of our

          8  first LPN class.  It was December, the Wednesday

          9  before Christmas, her three year old was running up

         10  and down the aisle taking pictures of her mommy, who

         11  was sitting in the first row.  That was Wednesday

         12  night.

         13                 On Friday evening, I received a phone

         14  call from the Director of Nursing, that Nancy's

         15  partner, who had been very violent to her that

         16  entire year and we had really been working with her

         17  very closely, counseling her, had finally gotten to

         18  her, killed her, put her body in the trunk of a car

         19  and set the car on fire.  Nancy left a three year

         20  old daughter.

         21                 My second incident of domestic

         22  violence, I see their faces before me, was last

         23  year, at this time, Lillian, was just paying her

         24  bill at the bank on 149th Street, was crossing the

         25  street to get into her car, when her companion
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          2  finally got to her and killed her right there, on

          3  149th Street, near my college.

          4                 We do what we can, Chairman, to put

          5  in place all the policies and procedures to protect

          6  our students and those who work for us at Hostos

          7  Community College, but the system sometimes breaks

          8  and I will never forget those two women.  I hope, in

          9  my tenure as President, that I do not have to

         10  experience this again.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Well, you know,

         12  it's hard to say thank you for that testimony, but

         13  we appreciate your presentation.  This is why we

         14  have this.  You know, it's painful to hear things

         15  like that and we're hoping out of this Hearing, we

         16  can really tighten up in any areas where it really

         17  needs to be tightened up.  But, thank you so much

         18  for your testimony.

         19                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  I just want to

         21  acknowledge Council Member Gale Brewer from

         22  Manhattan, a long- time supporter of CUNY.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Mr. Chair,

         24  you didn't ask for applause.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  I didn't have
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          2  to, because she works harder than you and Larry  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Oh  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  And all the

          5  others.  So, she got it automatically.  See, I had

          6  to beg them to clap for you all.  I had to really

          7  pull it out of the crowd to clap for you all, but it

          8  happened automatically with Gale, so you should have

          9  left well enough alone Miguel.  Please proceed.

         10                 MS. PARKER:  Thank you.  Good

         11  afternoon Chairperson Barron and Members of the City

         12  Council Higher Education Committee.  I am Deborah

         13  Parker, Chair of the City University Women's Centers

         14  Council.

         15                 The Council was established in 2001,

         16  with the goal to educate and advise the University

         17  on women's issues that impact upon student retention

         18  efforts and to serve as a source of support for CUNY

         19  Women's Centers in their work to promote the growth

         20  and development of women students as they pursue

         21  both their academic and their life- long goals.

         22                 I am here today as their

         23  representative to talk about the Women's Centers and

         24  their role in dealing with intimate partner abuse on

         25  our individual campuses.  Women's Centers in CUNY
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          2  are very diverse in staffing, funding, mission and

          3  student participation.  The need for Women's Centers

          4  stems from the increase of women into the labor

          5  market, who realize that education is not an option,

          6  but a necessity to improve their quality of life.

          7                 There are ten Women's Centers on CUNY

          8  campuses. Three are based on community colleges,

          9  college campuses: BMCC, Kingsborough and LaGuardia

         10  Community College and seven at the senior colleges:

         11  Brooklyn, John Jay, Medgar Evers, Queens, York and

         12  the College of Staten Island and at the Graduate

         13  Center.

         14                 The first Women's Centers in CUNY

         15  were established as early as the 1970's, with

         16  Brooklyn College being the first in 1974, followed

         17  by Baruch in 1978.  The Brooklyn College Women's

         18  Center is among the most well known and established

         19  centers in the country today.

         20                 As evidenced by empirical data, many

         21  women confront obstacles in navigating our complex

         22  society and have difficulty balancing all of their

         23  many roles and expectations, while attempting to

         24  become a successful student, professional, parent,

         25  partner and caregiver.
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          2                 Ideally, Women's Centers help to

          3  provide some of the answers at higher education

          4  institutions by offering a friendly, supportive

          5  atmosphere that is responsive to the diverse needs

          6  expressed by the women students of CUNY.  CUNY is,

          7  the University is comprised of 62 percent female at

          8  the undergraduate level and 55 percent at the

          9  graduate level.

         10                 The colleges serve women with such

         11  multiple issues and needs as: Domestic abuse; incest

         12  survivors; women with disabilities; mentoring; rape

         13  survivors; health care; housing; food pantries;

         14  women re- entering society from prisons and

         15  shelters; sexual harassment; child care; legal

         16  services; eating disorders; substance abuse;

         17  parenting issues; time management; career

         18  development; immigration; welfare and work; and

         19  research on women's issues.

         20                 I said all that because while

         21  extensive, this is by no means an exhaustive list

         22  and is but a sample of the varied information and

         23  support services that the CUNY Women's Centers

         24  provide to our students.

         25                 While our female students face many
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          2  challenges, the Women's Centers strive to do the

          3  best they can with the resources that are available.

          4                 One issue of concern to this body is

          5  intimate partner abuse.  The approach and response

          6  is similarly varied where Women's Centers exist on

          7  campus.  For example, they provide a safe place for

          8  individuals in need, counseling, on and off campus

          9  referrals, confidential support groups and

         10  coordination of proactive programming.  Programming

         11  includes a variety of events such as: Classroom

         12  presentations, the Clothesline Project, Take Back

         13  the Night and Walk With Me and panels and speakers

         14  on domestic violence.  These activities are intended

         15  to reach women and men to raise awareness to the

         16  issue of intimate partner abuse.

         17                 As you may know already, Walk With Me

         18  is now an annual activity initiated by the members

         19  of the State Assembly and Senate.  It is a silent

         20  procession that is held on college campuses

         21  throughout New York State in an effort to mobilize

         22  young people to become actively involved in

         23  combatting domestic violence.  Last year, BMCC

         24  college community joined Assemblywomen Deborah Glick

         25  as she and her staff silently walked the halls with

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  signage to raise awareness to the issue of intimate

          3  partner abuse.

          4                 Each Women's Center is unique in

          5  terms of leadership also, organization and budget,

          6  as well as such operational issues as the

          7  availability of space and funding sources.  The

          8  pattern of staffing, which typically dictates the

          9  level of programming and services that can be

         10  offered ranges from a part- time faculty club

         11  advisor to a full- time director.

         12                 Two programs are student- staffed

         13  Women's Centers, three are part- time faculty and

         14  staff coordinated centers, four have full- time

         15  directors who are responsible for programming and

         16  outreach.  The Graduate Center is unique in that it

         17  acts mostly in a research capacity and does not

         18  provide any direct services to women.

         19                 It should be emphasized that each

         20  center follows a specific protocol for issues

         21  dealing with intimate partner abuse. Depending upon

         22  the issue, each center collaborates with the

         23  Counseling Centers, Campus Public Safety Offices,

         24  Deans of Students and Health Services, and offers a

         25  specific resource to help students in distress.
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          2  Therefore, Women's Centers must turn to other

          3  resources, both on- and off- campus, in order to

          4  provide a range of services to students regarding

          5  domestic violence.

          6                 Because funding levels vary, but for

          7  the most part are limited, this necessitates

          8  collaboration with other funded programs, which, in

          9  some cases, include Women's Studies and Student

         10  Activities.  Often, where there are Women's Studies

         11  Programs, the relationship is especially important

         12  in the learning process for our students, as it

         13  bridges the academic component into the students'

         14  everyday lives.

         15                 What we have experienced at the

         16  Centers is that intimate partner abuse negatively

         17  impacts a student's ability to attend class, study

         18  and pursue educational goals.  We endeavor to

         19  address some of these issues as they relate to

         20  retention. Together, the Women's Centers and Women's

         21  Studies Programs impact student retention throughout

         22  CUNY by working in tandem with other services while

         23  addressing the students' academic as well as

         24  personal issues.

         25                 Students who graduate in spite of
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          2  abuse and violence they have experienced in their

          3  personal lives are often only able to do so because

          4  of the personal attention and concern they are shown

          5  at the colleges that have Women's Centers and by

          6  faculty and staff who devote their lives to the

          7  study and empowerment of women.  With so little, we

          8  have done so much. With more resources and support,

          9  the number of students who successfully complete

         10  their careers at CUNY can only increase.

         11                 I want to thank you, Chairman Barron,

         12  for bringing this important issue and Ms. Halm and

         13  Ms. Owusu, to the, and inviting the Women's Centers

         14  to be included in this discussion.

         15                 I want to share something with you

         16  about someone that I know.  I young woman who was at

         17  a community college studying and each night that

         18  she, during her finals, her husband would like, one

         19  night he ripped the phone off the wall because she

         20  was sharing notes with a student.  Then, he, she had

         21  to study, so they get into an argument and she

         22  wanted to sleep on the couch because she was angry

         23  and he took a knife and he cut the mattress in half.

         24                 I want to tell you that I'm that

         25  student.  I have three degrees from CUNY and the
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          2  only way that I graduated and I am successful today

          3  is because of the many people in CUNY campuses who

          4  reached out and provided that support.  It was the

          5  Director of Financial Aid who mentored me.  She's

          6  not a counselor.  She was someone from CUNY for

          7  cared.  I believe wholeheartedly that collectively

          8  we can do this together.  So, thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Well, thank you

         10  for sharing your testimony and your personal

         11  testimony.  Congratulations and bless you for

         12  overcoming it or being able to see through it.  We

         13  hope, through this Hearing, we could provide the

         14  support services necessary and needed for students

         15  to get through this time and dealing with this very,

         16  serious, serious issue.  So, I want to thank all of

         17  you for your testimony.

         18                 I know some of my colleagues have

         19  some questions, but I'd like to ask you first.  Is

         20  there any empirical data or collection of

         21  information that you have that can give us a sense

         22  of the CUNY impact, what's happening on CUNY

         23  campuses as it relates to domestic, intimate partner

         24  violence?  You know, just what's happening on CUNY?

         25                 Every time, when we do these things,

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  we get the national, the City- wide stuff, but is

          3  there any collection of CUNY information on how

          4  severe or any numbers on the CUNY campuses, in

          5  general, the whole, campus- wide or CUNY- wide?

          6                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  We do have

          7  our Chief of Security here and part of the national

          8  responsibility we have is to collect data on crime

          9  on campus.  Mr. Barron, if it's with your

         10  permission, I'd like to ask our Chief of Security to

         11    --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Well, before you

         13  do that, if you may, if he doesn't have, I don't

         14  mean like crime in general --

         15                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  I

         16  understand.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  I mean any

         18  specific number, I mean, he's welcome to come and

         19  testify, but what I'm really looking for is

         20  specifically for intimate partner violence

         21  information.  If he has any collection of that, we'd

         22  be glad to hear it.

         23                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Chairman, I know, I

         24  can give you mine by my campus alone.  So, and I'm

         25  sure that CUNY has it CUNY wide, but for Hostos, we
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          2  have broken down specifically that way.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Okay.  We'd be

          4  glad to have that.  If we can get, you want him to

          5  come and?

          6                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Okay.  I have here,

          7  we asked for this information because we thought you

          8  might ask that question. The incident reports on

          9  domestic violence on file at Hostos Community

         10  College are as follows:  Four harassment reports;

         11  one aggravated harassment report; one assault

         12  report; two reported allegations of domestic

         13  violence off- campus; one arrest made in reference

         14  to the assault report; seven active orders of

         15  protection currently on file; and three pending

         16  delivery of orders by three new complainants.  So,

         17  we keep that available and I'm sure that that

         18  information  --  am I right, Chief?  That's my Chief

         19  of Security back there.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  How did he go

         21  about collecting? Because it's four, are you saying

         22  four and  --

         23                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Four harassment

         24  reports.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  So, you mean to
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          2   --

          3                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  They come forward  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  To tell me

          5   --

          6                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  --  And they report

          7  that to my, my security office.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  I understand

          9  that, but I'm just saying that all of what we heard

         10  in your testimony, four? Is that an accurate

         11  indication of what's going on on the campus? Because

         12  I find it hard to believe only four people  --  I

         13  know it's reported harassments, are you just saying

         14  people are not reporting it or they just refuse to

         15  report it?  Is there some reporting that goes

         16  undocumented  --

         17                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Yeah, I know.  There

         18  is more  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  And what time

         20   --

         21                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  --  It was just  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  Period is

         23  that?

         24                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  They're broken down

         25  by category. Four harassment reports; one aggravated
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          2  harassment report; one assault report; two reported

          3  allegations of domestic violence off- campus; one

          4  arrest that was made  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  I got that.

          6  You're repeating what you already  --

          7                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Yeah and  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  Said.  I got

          9  that.  I'm clear on what you said.  I'm just

         10  concerned, what is the time period of this?  Did

         11  this happen  --

         12                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Within a year's time,

         13  I guess, right  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  So, within  --

         15                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  --  Chief?  Yeah, it

         16  was, it was within one year's time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Within one

         18  year's time.

         19                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  That's the

         21  figures you have for that particular campus, Hostos?

         22                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Right, just for

         23  Hostos.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  All right.

         25                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Mr. Barron,
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          2  I do have numbers.  My colleagues shared with me

          3  the, our annual report for '05  '06 that represents

          4  the total numbers for the system.  The total

          5  incidents reported were 82.  As Dean from our Law

          6  School shared, many of the incidents are not

          7  reported.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  It says 82

          9  reports CUNY- wide --

         10                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Yes sir.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  And for what

         12  time period?

         13                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:   '06, 6/05

         14  to 6/06.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Okay,  6/05 to

         16  6/06.

         17                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  The, okay,

         18  all right. Thank you.  Mr. Chairman, I have some

         19  updated numbers our Chief just shared with me.  The

         20  total is 97 for total incidents reported.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Now, let me ask

         22  you this, because I noticed in your instance at

         23  Hostos, it was the security, are there other ways

         24  that people could report it? Could they report it to

         25  the counseling department, report it to other areas?
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          2    Do those numbers include reports to other

          3  departments or is it just a report to the Chief of

          4  Security?

          5                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  These are reports

          6  that are made by students and if it goes to a

          7  counseling department, depending on the severity of

          8  the report, then the automatic procedure would be to

          9  contact campus security.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Is there

         11  instances where it doesn't necessarily go to campus

         12  security and stays within that department?

         13                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Yes.

         14                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  So, how  --

         16                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  If the student does

         17  not want it to go any further, you have to respect

         18  the request of the student.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  But, the report

         20  itself, would you like to just take a seat and

         21  testify or  -- you're welcome to do that.

         22                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  I didn't know he was

         23  standing behind me.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Because I'm

         25  only, what I'm concerned about is that we really,
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          2  the purpose of this Hearing is to see that we get to

          3  the bottom of this, how severe this problem is.  So,

          4  I'm just trying to find out, could a student report

          5  it to a department and that's a report and it

          6  stopped right there and they, how is that recorded,

          7  that it was actually reported? And would it come to

          8  you automatically from all of the departments, or

          9  does it stop at some of the departments?  And, if it

         10  stops at the departments, what is the number there?

         11                 CHIEF OF SECURITY (unidentified):  If

         12  I may, what does occur is that  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  First, identify

         14  yourself. You can pull up a chair and identify

         15  yourself.  Not our swivel chairs, you have to get

         16  one of the chairs, no I'm just kidding, I'm just

         17  kidding, you could take the chair.  I'm just

         18  kidding, you could take the swivel chair.  You could

         19  take that one, I'm just kidding.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  When you go

         21  to Hostos College, I know why they detain you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  I don't want you

         23  to think we're elitist.  We want the people to sit

         24  like we sit, right Larry?  Matter of fact, you want

         25  my seat? I'll switch.
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          2                 CHIEF OF SECURITY:  Well, I don't

          3  know.  Good afternoon.  Actually, what we have in

          4  place is there is federal law and I'm sure that

          5  everyone here on this Committee has heard of it,

          6  it's Jeanne Clery Federal Law.  What happens under

          7  that law is that we're required to inform the

          8  college community that anyone who has professional

          9  responsibility over students who might become aware

         10  of a crime on the campus, whether it involves

         11  domestic violence or sexual assault or not, is

         12  required, under the federal law, to forward those

         13  reports to the Public Safety Office at least once a

         14  year, so that that information could be reported to

         15  the Department of Education.

         16                 So, my office, like all of the other

         17  Public Safety Directors' offices, once a year, are

         18  required to send out these notices to the college

         19  community, informing counselors, informing officers

         20  of Judicial Affairs, informing Vice- Presidents of

         21  Student Development and Enrollment, again, as well

         22  as other positions on the campus that have

         23  professional responsibility over students, coaches,

         24  directors of athletic programs, that if they have

         25  received reports, whether they believe they've, that
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          2  those reports have been made to the Public Safety

          3  Office or not, they should forward them to us, so

          4  that we can then investigate them and/or include

          5  them in our statistical information that's reported

          6  to the federal government every year.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  So, let me ask

          8  you this, the four reports that you have of

          9  harassment, was it?  Those four reports, what

         10  departments did they come from?  Did they come from,

         11  did they come directly to you or did they come from

         12  departments?

         13                 CHIEF OF SECURITY:  On at least three

         14  that I can, I can tell you off the top of my head,

         15  were reported directly to either Public Safety or

         16  Public Safety observed them taking place on the

         17  campus and we approached the individuals.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  So, only one of

         19  those harassments reports came from some place other

         20  than Public Safety?

         21                 CHIEF OF SECURITY:  On one of them,

         22  it was, we were informed by actually an

         23  administrator who received the information, in fact,

         24  in the Office of the President, and that

         25  administrator contacted my office and we then made
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          2  contact with that particular student and pursued and

          3  followed- up on the investigation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Something needs

          5  to happen there, I think, you know, because I'm sure

          6  more is occurring, you know, on the campus that's

          7  either being reported and not getting to you or not

          8  being reported and we've got to do something about

          9  that.  In the CUNY- wide incident, most of that is

         10  coming from security, Public Safety  --

         11                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Yes sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  And the 97,

         13  you said?  92 --

         14                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  97  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  97  --

         16                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  --  Were

         17  reports, yes  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Does that  --

         19                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  System-

         20  wide.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  Include

         22  coming from different departments and to security or

         23  directly to Public Safety?

         24                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Those are

         25  from across the board.  Some are reported directly
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          2  to campus safety, others are coming to campus safety

          3  because of the nature of the report, because of the

          4  nature of the incident.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Now, these 97

          6  incidents, is that intimate partner violence or is

          7  that violence  --

          8                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  These are

          9  domestic  -- yes sir  --  these are domestic

         10  incident reports.  This reports are strictly

         11  domestic incident reports.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Okay.  I have a

         13  few more questions, but I'm going to open it up to

         14  Council Member Miguel Martinez, you said you had

         15  some questions.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes.  Thank

         17  you Mr. Chair.  I want to thank you for the services

         18  provided for victims.  However, you know, in most of

         19  the testimony that I heard, there's a lot of

         20  emphasis in terms of victim and public safety.

         21  That's concerning and it's further concerning when I

         22  hear that from the Women's Center.

         23                 There isn't a standard, across the

         24  board, policy from CUNY in terms of service

         25  structure for victims.  I'll say this, and maybe I'm
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          2  wrong, maybe you did say it somewhere, but I get a

          3  sense that there isn't a standard across the board,

          4  in CUNY, whether you are a senior college or a

          5  community college, in terms of providing the service

          6  structure where each campus, other than the

          7  counseling department, other than if the victim

          8  comes forward, a setting where the victim could feel

          9  comfortable to come to look for services.  I didn't

         10  hear that.

         11                 I further did not hear collaboration

         12  in terms of individual campuses having some sort of

         13  link or collaboration with service providers for

         14  victims.  I say this because, currently, the

         15  Council, in its second year, has funded what we call

         16  the Dove Initiative, which is a domestic violence

         17  empowerment funding.

         18                 The emphasis behind the funding is

         19  that we want to fund and empower local, non- profit

         20  and strengthening their services that are culturally

         21  sensitive, because that's another issue we need to

         22  consider.  CUNY is the most diverse system where you

         23  may have someone from one part of the world to

         24  another part, from one pole to one pole, where we

         25  have so many diverse students with different
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          2  cultures, where we come from different backgrounds

          3  and the emphasis of Dove is to have that cultural

          4  sensitivity for victims of violence.

          5                 In this case, I would suggest, and if

          6  you do have it, I would like to hear that, in terms

          7  of CUNY putting together an across the board system

          8  standard where each campuses, other than your common

          9  counselor, where you usually, most of the

         10  interaction between a student and a counselor is

         11  either when we're not doing good in our grades, when

         12  we're panicking, because either we're going to lose

         13  financial aid, so we have to go to our counselor to

         14  see how he can help us and put us back on track, or

         15  when we're looking for advice in terms of our

         16  academic career, how we want to carry on.  But, we

         17  usually don't think about these counselors when we

         18  have these kinds of issues.

         19                 Being a CUNY student myself, having

         20  worked in the area of domestic violence, and now

         21  currently spearheading the initiative of Dove, you

         22  know, we really need to set up a focus system where

         23  if you're a victim, you know that this is the person

         24  to go to.  You know that if you go into this office,

         25  you're going to feel comfortable, it's going to be
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          2  confidential and the last person you're going to

          3  hear from is Public Safety, because if I'm a victim,

          4  I don't want to go to Public Safety, just like they

          5  don't go to the police department, I don't want to

          6  go to Public Safety because they're dressed in blue.

          7    There's that negative connotation.

          8                 Also, the percentage of the Public

          9  Safety Officers, I will guess that most of them are

         10  male.  Am I right? So, these are important little

         11  issues that we have to consider when we are talking

         12  about this issue and providing these services for

         13  victims within the system.  I think if we provide a

         14  safe structure, where we are focused on the victim,

         15  confidentiality, culturally sensitive and so forth,

         16  I think that those numbers that we heard, Mr. Chair,

         17  would be much higher in every campus. I'm not

         18  focusing on any particular campus, but across the

         19  board, I strongly believe that those numbers would

         20  be higher.

         21                 So, I just wanted put that on the

         22  table and if there is a plan and so forth, and it's

         23  also interesting, how come the Women's Center is not

         24  getting funding directly from CUNY?  If it's a

         25  priority and important issue, why aren't we getting
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          2  any funding?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I didn't

          4  now that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Hold on, let's

          6  not get out of control here.  Wait a minute, wait a

          7  minute.  Direct your questions to the people on the

          8  panel.  Direct your questions to the people on the

          9  panel.  If you'd like to testify, fill out a form

         10  and you can come right up here and testify.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  In all

         12  seriousness, because, you know, when we read the

         13  testimony from the Women's Center, you know, they're

         14  doing the best they can and there's emphasis on the

         15  issue of funding and there's emphasis in terms of

         16  what they're trying to do, but each campus, from

         17  what I hear, has a different mechanism of dealing

         18  with this.  I think  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  You know what

         20  would be good? If you could  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  --  That

         22  the point coming from downtown, set a standard and

         23  put the money behind the issue.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  I think you

         25  should direct the question to the Administration,
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          2  the Women's Centers, they're going to testify next,

          3  but I think  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  She's right

          5  here.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  I mean from the

          7  others. That's  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Oh.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  That's one.  We

         10  have  --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Oh, oh  --

         12                 MS. PARKER:  We're more than  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  We have a whole

         14  panel.  We have whole panel that's coming up next.

         15                 MS. PARKER:  We're more than just one

         16  woman.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  I thought

         18  you were from the Women's Center.

         19                 MS. PARKER:  I'm the representative,

         20  but there's more than one woman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  She is, but

         22  that's only one person.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Oh, oh,

         24  they're different centers.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Yes, so what you
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          2  could do, if you have an  --

          3                 MS. PARKER:  I'm just a

          4  representative.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --

          6  Administration question, you're asking a good

          7  question, just have them respond and then the

          8  Women's Centers, we're going to have a panel of them

          9  come up and share their  --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, you're

         11  not part of the Administration?

         12                 MS. PARKER:  No, I'm the Chair of the

         13  Women's Center's Council.  I'm one of the Directors

         14  of the Women's Centers in CUNY.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, Mr.

         17  Chair, if I may? I just want to, if, can you explain

         18  the structure of the Women's Center?

         19                 MS. PARKER:  I  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  You know, why

         21  don't you do this Miguel, can we save that for the,

         22  there's a whole panel coming up.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Okay.

         24                 MS. PARKER:  Each one is different.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Right.
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          2                 MS. PARKER:  So, I could be here for

          3  the next hour --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Right.

          5                 MS. PARKER:  --  Each one is

          6  different.  They're not the same.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Let me just have

          8  you address those  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  Questions to

         11    --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  All right,

         13  we'll --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  The

         15  Administration.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  --  We'll

         17  hold.

         18                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  May I

         19  respond  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Sure.

         21                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  --  Mr.

         22  Chairman, to the issue about providing a centralized

         23  approach to addressing domestic violence?

         24                 When I arrived at CUNY, one of the

         25  first priorities I listed was this whole issue of
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          2  psychological counseling, the whole issue of dealing

          3  with health issues and domestic violence.

          4                 Just this morning, I met with the

          5  psychological counselors.  We agreed that we will

          6  establish a plan that we will propose to the

          7  Chancellor to focus, to give focused attention, just

          8  exactly what you said, to have a system- wide

          9  approach to providing psychological counseling,

         10  addressing domestic violence and other issues.

         11                 I think you're exactly right, in

         12  terms of if we look at this problem, on the

         13  individual campuses and if we have a place that is

         14  inviting, where students feel safe and that they

         15  know they can come and it's not called a mental

         16  health center, but is called something that is very

         17  much positive towards helping them to matriculate

         18  through the system, we'll have more students

         19  visiting it, so thank you.

         20                 MS. PARKER:  I'd like to  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  The other thing

         22  I would like for Mr. Moore to address is the funding

         23  question.  I didn't hear a response to the funding

         24  question.  So, if you could respond to Council

         25  Member Martinez's question of funding for the
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          2  Women's Center?

          3                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  I understand

          4  that and, of course, again, I'm new to the system,

          5  I'm still learning. However, I understand that last

          6  year the number one priority that was requested from

          7  the Council was $12.1 million for counselors,

          8  Women's Centers, health centers, libraries and

          9  counseling.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Yes, but, see,

         11  we're not talking about the request from the

         12  Council.  That's our responsibility.  We're talking

         13  about CUNY's money.

         14                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  See, I know John

         16  probably tried to tell you to throw it on the City

         17  Council, but we're talking about money coming out of

         18  the CUNY budget  --

         19                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  So, excuse

         21  John, please. The money that the City Council

         22  initiatives, we give millions of dollars to CUNY

         23  projects from the City Council.  Miguel's question

         24  was, CUNY, central CUNY, out of your budget, how

         25  much of your money is going to the Women's Centers
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          2  out of your budget? How much of your dollars are

          3  going to the Women's Centers out of your budget?

          4  So, I just wanted the question to be very, very,

          5  very clear.

          6                 Some of you need to run for office,

          7  because you know how to dance better than some of

          8  us.  So, we want, really, an answer to that

          9  question.  How much of the CUNY central budget goes

         10  to the  --  that was your question Council Member,

         11  correct?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes Mr.

         13  Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Yes.  That's the

         15  question we wanted an answer  --

         16                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Okay and I

         17  don't have an answer.  I don't.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Well, maybe Mr.

         19  Kotowski, do you have an answer since you, you can

         20  sit down and get a chair and we'd be glad to hear

         21  from you.

         22                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Could I just?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  We're going to

         24  get to you.  I just want to make sure we get the

         25  answer to this question on the budget money.

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  John Kotowski, City

          3  Relations Director.  Thank you Mr. Chair.  Each

          4  college is allocated a certain amount of money.

          5  Each college is based on operating expense.  Each

          6  college's departments present to the President, we

          7  have a sitting President here, and they allocate

          8  their money appropriately.

          9                 Some colleges believe in their

         10  academic process through the faculty to council and

         11  through some of the other departmental kind of

         12  meetings they meet.  The counseling service, the

         13  kind that Council Member Miguel Martinez mentioned,

         14  for academic counseling, is most important.  There

         15  are Women's Centers, there's the Black Male

         16  Initiative, there is academic counseling, there is

         17  recreation, there's health centers, there's

         18  tutoring, there's library services.  There's a

         19  multitude of departments that are all vying for the

         20  money.  Does the Women's Center  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Right, that's

         22  what I was going to ask.

         23                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  --  Deserve more money

         24  around for what they do? Absolutely.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  No, not deserve.
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          2    I'm just trying to find out how much.  Is it at

          3  the discretion of each College President  --

          4                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  To determine

          6  how much the Women's Centers  --

          7                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Right and some of the

          8  Women's Centers  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  Will get?

         10                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  --  And maybe Deborah

         11  or one of the other Directors, some of their money

         12  is actually allocated out of the student activities

         13  fees.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:

         15  Unacceptable.

         16                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Well, it could be

         17  unacceptable, but that's what they choose to spend

         18  their money on and they are the students and they

         19  control that fund.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Go ahead Miguel.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  If we're

         22  going to be serious about this issue, if it's a

         23  serious issue, based on the testimony from the Vice-

         24  Chancellor, CUNY has to step up.  CUNY must make it

         25  a priority and must make it a serious issue.
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          2  Because, we can't stand here and you hear testimony

          3  about the impact that violence has on students and

          4  yet you're saying that you're passing on the buck to

          5  the Presidents; that it's up to them whether they

          6  want to fund and address this serious and important

          7  issue.

          8                 I think that just as the Chancellor's

          9  done before, when the Chancellor came forward with

         10  the proposal that I don't support and didn't support

         11  and I'm not going to support, of the tuition

         12  increases, one of the items that he said was, well,

         13  we need to increase tuition, so that we could

         14  provide the services for students.

         15                 So, when we're collecting dollars

         16  from students, I think that CUNY should send a

         17  message down, because if it's up to each individual

         18  President, they each have priorities, they each, in

         19  their own campuses, know what they need.  But, if we

         20  have a policy coming from the Chancellor, that this

         21  is what we need, policy- wide for CUNY as a system,

         22  then I think we're sending a different message.

         23  Along with that, I think that CUNY, the Chancellor

         24  in budget lines, in the CUNY budget system, should

         25  put money for at least a minimum amount of funding
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          2  across the board for each Women's Center.

          3                 On top of that, each President,

          4  because, again, we all have different priorities, we

          5  all have different needs, we all have different

          6  communities, should be encouraged to put money for

          7  the Women's Centers to address this issue and to

          8  establish an office.  It could be related to the

          9  student counseling, but a specific office geared

         10  towards addressing the issue of violence in the

         11  campuses, because it's not just a CUNY issue, this

         12  is a nationwide issue in all universities.

         13                 I think that CUNY, as one of the

         14  largest public university system, should set an

         15  example as, you know, how to address this issue and

         16  how to deal with the matter.  Because, you know, if

         17  you come to the Council, you will be supported.

         18  But, in this case, I think that CUNY needs to lead

         19  in providing a system that victims, students could

         20  go into and feel that they have the support and feel

         21  that they're going to get the help they need and

         22  even as much as the collaborative efforts between

         23  domestic violence services providers and CUNY also

         24  sends a strong message. But, I think that we really

         25  need to be serious about, you know, addressing the
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          2  issue not just in theory, but in practice.

          3                 From the testimony of the Professor

          4  of Law and from the testimony of Dr. Fernandez, you

          5  know, this is a serious issue and it's happening all

          6  over.  I just, we heard the two incidents that Dr.

          7  Fernandez went through.  I'm sure that if we have a

          8  better, across the board system, where we're not

          9  only identifying the victims, because what we're

         10  doing is we're identifying victims, then we're

         11  reporting the incident to Pubic Safety.  Public

         12  Safety then is reporting to the police.

         13                 But, if we have a system of follow-

         14  up, a system of referral, I think that we could

         15  avoid a lot of the incidents that, and I know it's

         16  not easy when we talk about, you know, domestic

         17  violence or partner violence, but I think that we

         18  could provide a structure where we could save lives.

         19                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  We couldn't agree with

         20  you more and everything you said we agree with.  In

         21  practice, what we tried to do last year in last

         22  year's budget priority, we can't mandate, in a

         23  sense, you know, it would be frivolous for us to

         24  mandate a policy  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  We is who?
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          2                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  We, administratively.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  That's what

          4  you do all the time with the Chancellor, but that's

          5  the Chancellor's regulation.

          6                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Understood.  The money

          7  is in place when we, if we mandate  --  may I?  If

          8  we mandate that each, each college president funds

          9  to a certain level, as you suggest, and the money is

         10  not there, we're being a little disingenuous in what

         11  we have in terms of funding.

         12                 What we did last year is the

         13  Chancellor did make a priority of exactly this

         14  issue, along with the counseling issues and a lot of

         15  it came out of the Hearings that we heard last year.

         16  We went though this with academic counseling with

         17  some of the other things again.  Our number one

         18  priority was the $12.1 million.  We spelled out

         19  exactly how it would be spent, exactly how we would

         20  distribute  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Yes, that was

         22  the City, back to the City Council's initiatives.

         23  The City Council, and all due respect  --

         24                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  The City

                                                            71

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  Council has a lot of initiatives that we go through

          3  during budget time  --

          4                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Understood.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  Some make

          6  it, some don't. We're talking about CUNY  --

          7                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --

          9  Administration  --

         10                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  And we are still

         11  talking CUNY.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  And

         13  prioritizing your responsibility.  We're going to

         14  continue to try to get that through even next time

         15  around.  We'll support it very strenuously again to

         16  see if we can get it through, maybe this Hearing

         17  will help the Council to do that  --

         18                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Good.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  But, short

         20  of that, we're talking about your responsibility  --

         21                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  We'll get back to you

         22  with a  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Let me finish.

         24                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  --  Outline of what we

         25  spent.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Let me finish,

          3  let me finish. I will.  I want to find out one, how

          4  much money is allocated to each Women's Center, do

          5  you have that on record here or?

          6                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  No  --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  That's something

          8  you'd have to bring?

          9                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Yeah, we'd have to get

         10    --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Okay.  If we can

         12  get the amount of money that each Women's Center

         13  receives and how many Women's Centers, does every

         14  college  --

         15                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  No, not every college,

         16  as Debbie said  --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Not every

         18  college has one. What? About ten?

         19                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Three Women's Centers

         20  on the community colleges, tell me if I'm wrong, and

         21  seven in the seniors.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  All right.  So,

         23  that's about ten.  So, we've got to say, what

         24  happens to those colleges that don't have Women's

         25  Centers and how are we addressing the problem on
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          2  those campuses?  This is a very serious issue.

          3  While we have a President here, what is your budget

          4  and how much of your budget goes to your Women's

          5  Center?

          6                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  I don't have a

          7  Women's Center.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Oh, you don't

          9  have one at all.

         10                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  No, but I want to

         11  refer to what Council Member Martinez  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Well, how much

         13   --

         14                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  --  Mentioned.  He

         15  mentioned the Dove money and I was very fortunate

         16  this year to receive from the City Council

         17  $100,000.00 in Dove money and we opened up the Nancy

         18   --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  You received it

         20  from who?

         21                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  The City Council  --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Council

         23  Member Arroyo.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  I mean from what

         25    --
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          2                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Maria del Carmen

          3  Arroyo.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  I mean what body

          5  did you say you received that from?

          6                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  From this

          7  distinguished body that we call the City Council.

          8                      CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  The City

          9  Council, oh, you didn't get that from central CUNY?

         10                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  No, I didn't  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Oh, you got it

         12  from City Council.

         13                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  I got it from City

         14  Council  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Oh, oh  --

         16                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  --  Yes, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  Okay, okay

         18   --

         19                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  And we did open, we

         20  did open the Nancy Reveron Center on campus this

         21  fall, which basically is a center where people who

         22  are experiencing some kind of problems, domestic

         23  violence issues, can go there.  It  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  So, had it not

         25  been for the City Council, that wouldn't have been
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          2  able to happen because the central CUNY didn't

          3  provide the funds for that.

          4                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Is that what

          6  you're saying? Is that your testimony here today?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Mr. Chair,

          8  if I may and I would be interested in some follow-

          9  up to look at that model, because this is a focus

         10  model on  --

         11                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  It is.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  --  On the

         13  issue of domestic violence within the campus, for us

         14  to look at it, seeing how we could expand from that,

         15  obviously in collaboration with the Women's Center,

         16  so we could take this across the board in CUNY.

         17                 Because, again, we hear it all the

         18  time from dating violence to domestic violence, for

         19  those who either cohabit together or not and from

         20  partnering.  I think CUNY has a tremendous

         21  opportunity because from every community, from every

         22  community you have members from, I believe every

         23  culture that migrates to the City of New York, you

         24  will find one in CUNY.  The languages, you will find

         25  one in CUNY; religious, you will find it in CUNY;
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          2  diversity, it's CUNY.

          3                 I think that CUNY has an opportunity

          4  to address an issue that is very sensitive in many

          5  cultures that people don't want to talk about,

          6  people don't want to address, victims don't know

          7  where to go to, to have a department, I wouldn't say

          8  a department, an office, where we could feel

          9  comfortable in going and seeking help.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Let me ask you

         11  this, why don't you have a Women's Center at Hostos?

         12                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Because I don't have

         13  the money in my budget to  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  It's all budget.

         15                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Even though we

         17  were just told that if the President is given a

         18  certain amount of money and it's up to you to

         19  determine how it's spent and you're just saying that

         20  the money's not there for  --

         21                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  There's  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  A Women's

         23  Center?

         24                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  --  A formula that's

         25  used in order to fund each one of the colleges and
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          2  according to the formula that's in place for my

          3  particular college, the money that's allocated

          4  really goes for the regular programming and staffing

          5  of the college.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  So, it's

          7  basically earmarked money, it's not like there's

          8  money that you have any flexibility over?

          9                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Not really, no.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  So  --

         11                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  We need more money.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  No, we know

         13  that, but with the money that you have  --

         14  everybody needs more money.  I don't know of a

         15  person, individual or institution that doesn't need

         16  more money.  But, the prioritization of the money

         17  that you have is what we're talking about here and

         18  how is that used until you get more money.  There is

         19  no flexibility for the Presidents?  I just want to

         20  get clear on something.  Is the money that the

         21  Presidents receive, most of it's earmarked money

         22  that has to be used, is there any flexibility in the

         23  Presidents?  Yes.

         24                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  A lot of it goes to

         25  counseling in many of the, you know, it's almost
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          2  like you develop a model and then you realize there

          3  are other problems and you expand the model.  The

          4  Women's Centers evolved because of some of the

          5  issues that were described and talked about today.

          6  If they're lucky enough in some cases to have this,

          7  fine.  The counseling department is usually the

          8  front line and the primary focus.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  So, let me just

         10  ask you this, so how come on other campuses they

         11  were able to have Women's Centers and not on yours?

         12  I mean  --

         13                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Well  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  I'm sure

         15  that they have, all of them receive a budget,

         16  Presidents, and some put together Women's Centers

         17  and others don't?  Is it  --

         18                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  I'm just going to help

         19  you with this, how is your Women's Center funded, I

         20  don't know.  Maybe  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  No, that's not

         22  the question I'm asking  --

         23                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  That would give you an

         24  idea of how --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  That's not the
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          2  question I'm asking.  The question I want to find

          3  out is that if every President, if there are seven

          4  on the seniors and three Women's Centers on the

          5  community colleges that could be coming to existence

          6  through whatever money the Presidents have, I just

          7  want to know, if this is a very serious problem at

          8  Hostos, why wasn't a Women's Center or something

          9  done there? Because you have a budget just like

         10  every other president.  Did you get less, did you

         11  have less flexibility?  I don't understand.

         12                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  Well, we use the

         13  money that comes into the college for programs that

         14  are essential for the students.  Part of those

         15  programs are the counseling programs. But, when

         16  you're talking about a need, a specific need for the

         17  students, this was over and above.  It was not

         18  calculated into my budget, so that I have been

         19  trying on my own to go out and get private money.

         20                 I was very fortunate this year to get

         21  the $100,000.00 from the City Council through this

         22  Dove Foundation. This is seed money as far as I'm

         23  concerned, because $100,000.00 is just seed money.

         24                 So, now, it would be my

         25  responsibility as President, because I do have a
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          2  total commitment to this, to try to identify

          3  additional monies for this Center, because it takes

          4  money to staff a Center like this and for a school

          5  like Hostos, it would be a Center that's open from

          6  about 7:00 in the morning to about 10:00 or 11:00 at

          7  night and that's staffing and that's a lot of money.

          8    It takes a lot of money.

          9                 We also have additional money and I

         10  just wanted to say also I have a high school and a

         11  middle school on my campus and we have received

         12  money from the Joe Torre Foundation.  We were the

         13  first school in New York City to receive money for

         14  the Margaret's Place, which is a room where kids in

         15  the middle school and the high school, who are in

         16  homes where there is violence going on, can come.

         17                 That funding that came through the

         18  Joe Torre Foundation is very little money in the

         19  sense that it's just funding a, two counselors

         20  downstairs in that middle school and high school.

         21  But, it is a safe haven, it's a safe haven for

         22  little kids to come in and talk.  That's what we're

         23  starting, we have started at Hostos.  Yes, it takes

         24  a lot of money, Chairman Barron, and  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Well, I know, we
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          2  know it takes money, everything takes money, but

          3  we're just concerned about how we are using the

          4  money we do have until we can get more money.  Is

          5  there a way that that can be addressed.  But, I want

          6  to let Council Member Seabrook  --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Can I just

          8  have a follow- up  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  Only because

         10  he  --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  --  Before

         12  I close on this issue?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Is it all right,

         14  Larry?  I want to make sure Larry  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Real quick.

         16    It was my questioning and you took it.  Having the

         17  benefit of serving in student government in CUNY and

         18  presiding over the student government, I kind of

         19  remember structure of budgets.

         20                 There's some items that are mandated

         21  that must be funded, correct?  There are other items

         22    --  I'm talking about when I was in school in

         23  CUNY.  There were some items that we would sit down

         24  and negotiate and prioritize that needed to be

         25  funding as part of the campus, but there were some

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  items that came from downtown.  So  -- and you don't

          3  have to answer this.

          4                 I think that there is the ability

          5  coming from downtown, and we could further discuss

          6  this outside of the room, to have an across the

          7  board minimum funding for Women's Centers, where we

          8  could prioritize, just like we did with Dove and I

          9  could share the information, community colleges and

         10  even senior colleges that are located in areas where

         11  we have high incidents of domestic violence from the

         12  different categories that we put together for Dove,

         13  where we should have a mandate to have Women's

         14  Centers.

         15                 These ideas  --  you don't have to

         16  answer, John. These are ideas that we could go over

         17  with, but, I would say, Mr. Chair, that before we

         18  step up to the plate, they need to step up and we

         19  could match whatever they come up with.  Thank you

         20  Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Well, we thank

         22  you for the question.  I think those are critical

         23  questions and certainly we'll take that under

         24  advisement very, very seriously.  Council Member

         25  Seabrook.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

          3  very much Mr. Chairman.  Just a couple of questions

          4  that I have.  It's not budget questions or anything,

          5  but it has something to do with part of the mission

          6  of the City University and as it relates to dealing

          7  with problem solving.

          8                 How creative and what are the

          9  curriculum moves that are being made to deal with

         10  the problem that has been a part of America's

         11  society for so long, but so little has been done

         12  about it as it relates to domestic violence and as

         13  it relates to this new topic of intimate partner

         14  violence?

         15                 What curriculum approaches are being

         16  instituted within the City University system that

         17  allows students to have information disseminated in

         18  a classroom setting as a part of the curriculum that

         19  teaches about violence in America, about violence

         20  against women in America, about violence against

         21  minorities in America?  How has that been addressed

         22  within the curriculum with a sense of problem-

         23  solving to do that? Because some of these people

         24  will become teachers and other various aspects

         25  within our society.
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          2                 So, the question is being taught and

          3  how will they teach people to deal with this issue

          4  and is it being a part of the curriculum that's

          5  being taught to look into these areas? Because

          6  everybody's not going to battered women clinics,

          7  because most men believe they don't have to go there

          8  anyway.  So, how do you put this into perspective

          9  that allows this as a part of the curriculum that

         10  begins to educate people about the violence in

         11  America and the violence against women in America in

         12  particular?

         13                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Many of our

         14  counselors are also faculty members.  As part of

         15  their everyday experience, they talk about and talk

         16  to students in small groups and in large groups,

         17  about domestic violence, about campus safety.

         18                 As far as integrating this into the

         19  curriculum, I don't have a specific answer about

         20  that, but I certainly will investigate to see which

         21  courses, in particular, are talking about domestic

         22  violence.  I have no doubt that's in the area of

         23  psychology and social work, that these issues are

         24  talked about.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I'm not
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          2  talking about the issues, I'm talking about do we

          3  have something called Domestic Violence 101?  Do we

          4  have something that talks about, those are issues

          5  and concerns that's a part of America's way of life

          6  that we need to have as discussions, so that

          7  everybody will have the opportunity to be a part of,

          8  because most people believe that what they do, as

          9  the professor at the Law School stated, that rape is

         10  one thing, out on the street dragging somebody in,

         11  but it has nothing to do with rape in the bedroom.

         12                 So, that's what I'm talking about,

         13  how best that we put this as a part of the

         14  curriculum and allow this to be taught to people

         15  because everybody in college doesn't go to

         16  counselors.

         17                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  You know, I

         19  went to all the colleges, I never went to a

         20  counselor, other than financial aid to find out

         21  where was my check.  But, I never went to a

         22  counselor.  There was more that I could tell them

         23  than they could tell me.  So, I think that that's

         24  what I'm looking at, how are we going to make this

         25  part of the curriculum?
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          2                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  There is no

          3  course that I'm aware of that is called Domestic

          4  Violence 101.  However, I know that there are

          5  workshops all the time.  I know that there are

          6  groups sessions all the time to talk about this

          7  issue.  I know we have pamphlets.  I know that the

          8  campus security are trained specifically on this

          9  particular issue of domestic violence and they have

         10  to test out of it in terms of ensuring that they

         11  have the knowledge to address this issue.

         12                 However, we do have what is called a

         13  Campaign for Student Success and as part of that

         14  there are, one of the goals in student services is

         15  to address this whole issue of psychological

         16  counseling, domestic violence.  That will be

         17  incorporated into the overall plan to ensure that

         18  students are successfully matriculated through the

         19  system.  But, I will  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  I'm just

         21  raising the issue here  --

         22                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Sure.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  --  That as

         24  it relates to, we have to look at it as a serious

         25  issue  --
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          2                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Absolutely.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  --  As a

          4  societal issue, because when I was in college,

          5  ethnic studies was an elective  --

          6                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  --  Now,

          8  it's a requirement because people demanded that, so

          9  that people would understand that there is diversity

         10  within and that there are people who are here that's

         11  not going away that's, the minority became the

         12  majority.

         13                 So, I'm saying that we have to begin

         14  to educate on the basis of what is taking place in

         15  America as it relates to this whole issue of

         16  violence, and domestic violence in particular, as it

         17  relates to women.  That needs to be a part of a

         18  curriculum that's taught, so that people will have

         19  an understanding of it because if we use it as an

         20  elective, that's why it's not serious.  People don't

         21  take it serious because the institutions have to

         22  take it seriously.

         23                 There should be Women's Centers on

         24  every college campus.  That shouldn't be a

         25  discussion about  --  the majority of students are
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          2  women and so the issue, that is there and it should

          3  be.  We have black studies in every school now.  We

          4  didn't have it on all of the college campuses, but

          5  when people saw that there was a need and a demand

          6  and pushed, it has become part of the curriculum

          7  today.

          8                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  I will  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Thank you.

         10                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  I'm sorry.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  You want to

         12  respond?

         13                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  I was just

         14  going to say, next week, I will attend a retreat

         15  with the provosts who set curriculum and I will be

         16  there as part of student life and I will make sure

         17  that I raise this very issue.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Okay,

         19  because I'm going to say it again.  I'm going to say

         20  it to the Chancellors and all the Chancellors that's

         21  here, that that needs to be as a part of the

         22  curriculum that we begin to teach this as a subject

         23  and start early and now.  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Thank you.  I

         25  want to thank both my colleagues and Council Member
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          2  Brewer is going to be speaking next.  We want to

          3  welcome Council Member Lew Fidler.  We thank you for

          4  coming into our Hearing and you all know what to do,

          5  right?

          6                 I really want to thank you for the

          7  level of seriousness of this Hearing and the

          8  inquiries and the questions and suggestions.  We're

          9  going to really stay on top of this and thank you

         10  for that, because the curriculum is very, very

         11  critical.  Is anything, I'm just curious, is

         12  anything said, is it a part of the freshman

         13  orientation?

         14                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Yes sir.

         15  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Domestic

         17  violence and  --

         18                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Absolutely,

         19  yes there is.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Okay.  Council

         21  Member Brewer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         23  very much. First, I just want to say that today, the

         24  Mayor's Office has a Mentors Day and I signed up and

         25  actually the person whom I'm honored to work with
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          2  today as a mentor, although she could mentor me, is

          3  Louise Katz (phonetic) who is here.  She is a Hunter

          4  College student.  Louise, do you want to just raise

          5  your hand? She is a poet and also a member of the

          6  disability community at Hunter and I just want to

          7  say thank you Louise for being here today.

          8                 That's number one, because it's a

          9  CUNY Hearing. My question is something tangential,

         10  but, you know, we've been part of this summit on

         11  Nightlife, which was actually held at John Jay

         12  College.  I think, for reasons, one of the reasons,

         13  of course, is because of the horrific outcome for a

         14  young women who was part of the community there and

         15  who was killed by a person who was working at a bar.

         16                 So, my question is, there is, to the

         17  Speaker's credit, a lot of discussion about how to

         18  address some of the issues in the clubs, then the

         19  police and so on.  But, one of the issues that has

         20  come up is, shouldn't there be a safe place within

         21  the bars or the clubs, where women students

         22  particularly, or women in general can go if they

         23  feel very uncomfortable in that club scene?

         24                 I just mention this because what

         25  could come out of it is a drinking age difference.
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          2  Who knows if that's going to be a challenge.  I do

          3  wonder, having kids about that age myself, what

          4  happens to that college- age student.  I think, I

          5  don't know if CUNY has waned in on this discussion,

          6  but one of the issues would be perhaps to have some

          7  kind of discussion with your students about how to

          8  improve the issue of safety in the clubs.

          9                 One of the concerns, of course, is

         10  how can you make it safer in the club.  How can you

         11  make it safer when you leave the club at a late

         12  hour, how can you make is safer just in general with

         13  people who are in that, you know, age group for

         14  whom, you know, there's lots of activities that we

         15  may not support but they're going to take place.

         16                 I just didn't know if you've been

         17  part of that. Is that something that has come up at

         18  CUNY and if there are, obviously, input from

         19  Administration as well as from students?

         20                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Council Member, we

         21  were asked, of course, to moderate, President Travis

         22  moderated the Nightlife Summit.  We haven't been

         23  involved because of public safety and under the law

         24  as it relates to the hospitality industry.  You

         25  know, what we have done in terms of CUNY is part of
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          2  the student orientation, along with this is this

          3  whole issue of safety.

          4                 We don't necessarily focus it on bars

          5  or that, it's just general about safety in general

          6  and we have created like if someone wants an escort

          7  over a bridge within a certain college, you know,

          8  Circles of Safety is one of the names where they

          9  meet to walk together, things like that.  But, we

         10  haven't gotten into that, nor have we weighed in and

         11  I guess we'll wait until the law and legislation has

         12  passed to see what they're requiring of students  --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I would just

         14  say, it's a great industry, we want to keep it in

         15  the City, but the fact of the matter is, if there

         16  are some changes, they will impact young people.  I

         17  think there could be some positive ones in terms of

         18  corridors of safety being expanded, safe places

         19  within the clubs and I think just generally, if the

         20  drinking age is changed to 21, it may or may not be,

         21  just even to enter, then that will say to people,

         22  well, you have to go somewhere else and the question

         23  to me is, where is that somewhere else.  So, I'm

         24  just saying these are things that you might want to

         25  consider.
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          2                 My other quick question is just in

          3  terms of prevention.  I think CUNY does a great job,

          4  both from the testimony and from personal knowledge,

          5  in terms of as much prevention as possible, because

          6  that's between all the centers, the guidance,

          7  freshmen, every kind of way of bringing information

          8  to people's attention.

          9                 Do you think that there are other

         10  ways, from the Madame President or anybody else who

         11  wants to jump in, that as a whole, as a community as

         12  a whole, that prevention, either from City policy,

         13  because of a lot of your students are not just on

         14  campus, they travel back and forth, this is a, you

         15  know, a very much a City campus, so are there any

         16  other kind of prevention that you think the City, as

         17  a whole, should be taking?

         18                 One of the concerns that we've always

         19  had and I know we tried to address it is, if you're

         20  trying to get an order of protection, you really do

         21  need a counselor to help you.  It's a very

         22  challenging process for anybody who's had to go

         23  through it, so hopefully you have counselors to do

         24  that.  But, are there any other kinds of prevention

         25  aspects from your experience that could help,
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          2  obviously, with prevention?

          3                 DR. FERNANDEZ:  I think just giving

          4  as much information to our students as possible and

          5  letting them know that they have access to services

          6  that are available on our campus.  That is done

          7  almost on a daily basis on my campus and giving

          8  information and letting them know that it is an open

          9  and welcoming environment is available for them to

         10  be able to go there and feel safe.  That's about it

         11  for us.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

         13                 MR. KOTOWSKI:  Councilwoman, and I

         14  say this in deference to Councilman Fidler's here

         15  and Chair's youth services, we have, college now, we

         16  have 13 high schools on our campuses. The earlier

         17  the better has been our approach.  You know, of

         18  course, as students come in, if they, you know,

         19  present problems, a lot of the folks that are here

         20  today are going to testify, they work way beyond

         21  their capacity to help these folks with their

         22  problems.

         23                 It's got to happen earlier, it's got

         24  to happen in the public schools, it's got to happen

         25  on our campuses ahead of time, so that when people
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          2  come here, this is not just a new topic, this is a

          3  topic they discuss.  I think some of the things I've

          4  seen that Councilman Fidler has put through, through

          5  youth services, through some of the information,

          6  some of the things he's pushed through DYCD and some

          7  of the programs they have, it's been helpful.  It's

          8  not a topic that they come and they're wide eyed

          9  about, but I think the earlier the better.  That

         10  would be our  --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  All right,

         12  thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Thank all of you

         14  very much for your testimony and if we can just get

         15  some of the statistical information on the Women's

         16  Centers and the monies funded to them and other

         17  kinds of things we'd appreciate it.  Thank you so

         18  much for your testimony.

         19                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  We have our next

         21  panel.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Katie Gentile,

         23  Reverend Gale Jones, Estelle Miller, Vanessa M.

         24  Bing.  Please raise your right hands.  Do you swear

         25  that the testimony that you are giving today is
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          2  honest and truthful?

          3                 PROFESSOR GENTILE:  Yes.

          4                 REVEREND JONES:  Yes.

          5                 DR. MILLER:  Yes.

          6                 DR. BING:  Yes.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Please state

          8  your names before you proceed with your testimony.

          9                 PROFESSOR GENTILE:  Hi.  My name is

         10  Katie Gentile. I'm a Professor of Counseling at John

         11  Jay College and the part time Director of the

         12  Women's Center, because I'm in counseling. You asked

         13  about data and I wanted, I'm going first because I

         14  do have some data.

         15                 I have data about the numbers of

         16  women I see. However, I didn't bring that.  It's not

         17  in my testimony.  I'd be happy to give it to you and

         18  it's for who I see and why I see them, which, having

         19  spoken to the other Women's Center Directors, I'd

         20  say, well, it's not the same.  I would say the very

         21  high numbers that come to the Women's Center, it

         22  does represent that.

         23                 We also have research that I'm going

         24  to discuss real quick.  But, I am the sole employee

         25  of the Women's Center, as well as a part- time
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          2  employee, basically in the Women's Center, since I'm

          3  a tenure track professor in Counseling.

          4                 My, to give the answer, it's not my

          5  statement, but my funding comes exclusively from

          6  student activities.  Let me just say, I won't go

          7  into what I do, but I'm just going to say, I see, on

          8  average, about four to 12 students per day, many of

          9  whom are dealing with intimate partner violence,

         10  none of whom, unless they have an active order of

         11  protection, they do not get reported to security.

         12  And, even if they do, getting them to security is

         13  another part- time job.

         14                 Per semester, the Women's Center sees

         15  approximately over 1,500 student contacts, at least

         16  a quarter of whom are in violence relationships.

         17  Due to these high numbers, I did team up with

         18  Professors Chitra Raghavan in Psychology and Valli

         19  Rajah in Sociology, both experts in intimate partner

         20  violence, to implement an assessment of dating

         21  violence in all incoming freshmen  -- excuse me  --

         22  at an urban commuter college.

         23                 Due to confidentiality of

         24  participants, I cannot divulge the campus, nor the

         25  location of the campus.  We have presented these
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          2  findings at national conferences and they are under

          3  review for the Journal of Interpersonal Violence and

          4  Violence Against Women.

          5                 What I wanted to say that, what's

          6  really important in terms of CUNY is that the

          7  national statistics that were cited earlier, they

          8  are very high, but they're based on studies done in

          9  majority white, upper middle class, residential, I

         10  will emphasize residential, campuses that are very

         11  unlike our commuter, urban, lower income primarily

         12  minority student campuses.

         13                 So, there isn't research in these

         14  areas.  Thus, we chose to focus specifically on a

         15  campus that would be more like a CUNY campus, to

         16  establish different prevalent rates for dating

         17  violence on these different kinds of campuses.  We

         18  did use standardized measures to measure incidents

         19  of dating violence, including physical, sexual abuse

         20  in the last 12 months, histories of child abuse,

         21  child sexual abuse before and after 13, witnessing

         22  family violence, exposure to neighborhood violence,

         23  peer network dating violence, it was very long, and

         24  levels of trauma in PTSD.

         25                 It was a randomly drawn sample of
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          2  incoming freshmen for four consecutive terms at an

          3  urban commuter college for a total 1,400 surveys.

          4  We found levels of dating violence to be

          5  approximately 40 percent, which is a good ten

          6  percent higher than the national average.  This was

          7  even in heterosexual, as well as LBGTQ students.  25

          8  percent of the women met the criteria for PTSD.

          9  That's also very high.

         10                 But, histories of sexual abuse and

         11  child abuse for both men and women students were at

         12  the high end of the national average, at 30 percent.

         13    Our analysis indicated that one of the strongest

         14  risk factors for being in a violent relationship, as

         15  a victim or a perpetrator, was having peers who

         16  condoned violence against women.  This differed

         17  slightly, the format took by ethnicity, but the

         18  central, the central premise was that if you condone

         19  violence against women, you're more likely to either

         20  be hit or to hit.

         21                 Given our large sample, 1,400, we're

         22  very confident of our findings.  We do think there's

         23  a correlation between experiencing intimate partner

         24  violence and retention. I'm sure all of us at the

         25  Women's Centers see it all the time, because you
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          2  can't be in school when you're hiding and you can't

          3  be in school if your stalking, basically, it's very

          4  difficult. So, we're in the midst of conducting

          5  follow- up analysis to assess the levels of academic

          6  achievement in students who were in the violence

          7  relationships, but we do not have that data yet.  We

          8  would be happy to provide that to the Council when

          9  we do have it.

         10                 I do, I would like to make three

         11  recommendations based on my research of data and the

         12  statistics of the high numbers I see at John Jay.

         13  Many of these have been discussed, so I will be

         14  brief.

         15                 As the earlier testimonies indicate,

         16  research data is extremely important and it's

         17  imperative that we get this data replicated at CUNY

         18  campuses in order to better understand our students,

         19  in order to better create programs to help our

         20  students and to keep them safe.  But, we need to get

         21  more accurate numbers, because as I said, the

         22  national statistics, as, as is often the case in

         23  psychology, are based on white upper middle class

         24  residential colleges and that's just not CUNY.  We

         25  cannot use this research and then apply it to our
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          2  programs.  That's irresponsible and unethical, I

          3  think.

          4                 The other thing is that given the

          5  prevalence of dating violence and the disparity in

          6  how campuses deal with it and report it, the

          7  important role and the important role peer networks

          8  play in perpetuating it, we need more organized

          9  systematic education, prevention and intervention

         10  strategies on all campuses.

         11                 Here, I'm going to say something

         12  that's also is not in my report, the other thing is

         13  we have to realize that one shot deals don't do it.

         14  They cause more backlash and that's shown in

         15  research continually, especially when it deals with

         16  racial violence, violence against women and

         17  homophobic violence, that you need to have it

         18  integrated within curriculum, it has to be

         19  integrated within an entire, not just one

         20  orientation class, and I know that doing that is a

         21  big deal, but it needs to be integrated, or else you

         22  will get a backlash and we don't want that.  In

         23  other words, it's better to do nothing, than to do

         24  just one class.

         25                 This does require a CUNY policy for
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          2  crisis response to dating violence and even though

          3  much dating violence takes place off- campus, it

          4  does impact our students and the safety of our

          5  students, so it is a University problem.  The last

          6  thing  --  and we do need more funding for Women's

          7  Centers, because this is going to all come on the

          8  backs of the Women's Centers, all these changes, and

          9  we need to have much more funding and personnel in

         10  all Women's Centers and Women's Centers on every

         11  campus.

         12                 Thank you.  I want to thank the

         13  Council for putting attention to this important

         14  issue.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  We want to thank

         16  you very much for that testimony and you may proceed

         17  and  --

         18                 DR. MILLER:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  Give us your

         20  name for the record.

         21                 DR. MILLER:  Thank you so much.  My

         22  name is Estelle Miller.  I'm Director of the Women's

         23  Center at Kingsborough Community College, Brooklyn,

         24  New York.

         25                 I just, before I begin my formal
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          2  testimony, I did want to just speak to a couple of

          3  issues that some of the Council Members raised.  In

          4  terms of applying for grants and getting grant

          5  money, I think, I know, speaking for myself, I apply

          6  for about five grants, five to ten grants a year.  I

          7  have been doing that annually.  We have never

          8  received any grants at all.  The competition is so

          9  great and I'm sure all of my colleagues at Women's

         10  Centers do the same.  It just doesn't happen quite

         11  that easily.

         12                 In terms of numbers, also the average

         13  is about three to five students, female students who

         14  come in to speak to me, who are involved in issues

         15  of intimate partner violence over a 36- week

         16  semesters, between, we're on a 12, six, 12, six

         17  schedule.  It's about a hundred students a year.

         18  So, our numbers differ.  They never get reported to

         19  Public Safety.

         20                 Because of my role as a social

         21  worker, Director of the Women's Center,

         22  confidentiality is certainly to be considered.  When

         23  a student is sitting across from me saying, please,

         24  please, I don't, I just want to tell you and nobody

         25  else, that's where it begins and that's where it
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          2  ends.

          3                 The other thing, I also am the

          4  coordinator of the College Now program at my campus,

          5  in terms of the Department of Student Development.

          6  I do curriculum for the student orientation classes.

          7    We talk about orienting students in the high

          8  schools, starting at the sophomore and junior year.

          9  This is just one aspect of it and as Professor

         10  Gentile mentioned, it's a one shot deal.  So, those

         11  are just some of the things that were mentioned that

         12  I wanted to give my perspective on.

         13                 The Center at Kingsborough opened its

         14  doors in 1991 and it was formed to serve the diverse

         15  populations at Kingsborough, where female students

         16  comprise approximately 68 percent of the student

         17  body.  Of this group, most are 18 to 22 year old,

         18  minority students, who are enrolled in career

         19  academic programs.  Then, as now, the staff is

         20  comprised of one full- time director, myself, and a

         21  part- time college assistant, who's employed 20

         22  hours per week.  We occupy a physical space on

         23  campus, which provides a welcome environment to all

         24  students. Our program is funded from students

         25  activities money, with an annual budget of $7,000.00
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          2  per year.

          3                 In 1991, the college took on the

          4  challenging task of offering this vital support

          5  service to serve students and to educate the college

          6  community about women's issues.  From the outset, a

          7  concerted effort was made to engage as many students

          8  as possible in the Center's programming and to

          9  provide a user friendly facility.  A group of

         10  faculty members and administrators had brainstorming

         11  sessions in an attempt to evaluate the needs of the

         12  student population.  From these meetings, it became

         13  clear that the Center would best meet student needs

         14  by providing services to enhance their personal,

         15  their academic and their professional lives.

         16                 An immediate challenge was to devise

         17  programs on an extremely limited budget that would

         18  enable the college to reach out to women from

         19  diverse groups, link them together and unite them

         20  around supporting common goals.  We felt it

         21  necessary to conduct a survey to identify students's

         22  needs and interests and one of the major issues that

         23  was identified was the high prevalence of domestic

         24  violence in women's lives.

         25                 As a result of the survey, the Center
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          2  participated in the nationwide, and we were the

          3  first to do it, in the Clothesline Project, where

          4  students created and exhibited tee shirts decorated

          5  to depict violence in women's lives.  Over a two

          6  year period, we do have now over a thousand tee-

          7  shirts that have been decorated.

          8                 The Center arranged for

          9  representatives of relevant City agencies to speak

         10  with students, such as Safe Horizon, Sanctuary for

         11  Families and respond to their direct service needs.

         12  We also began to offer both group and individual

         13  counseling to victims of domestic violence and,

         14  where needed, I provided necessary referral services

         15  for shelter and other direct resources.

         16                 The Center also engaged in

         17  collaborative efforts with the College's Office of

         18  Health Services, as well as the Women's Studies

         19  program.  This collaboration resulted in more

         20  programming that was reflective of the needs of our

         21  students and staff.  As demonstrated in the

         22  quantitative survey results presented here, the need

         23  for support services to aid victims of intimate

         24  partner violence is staggering.  Working with

         25  limited staff and a very limited budget, the Center
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          2  has fulfilled an important need.  I am certain that

          3  with greater funding and with more staff, the Center

          4  at Kingsborough, as well as other campuses, would be

          5  able to provide even more support in response to

          6  this problem.

          7                 Women's Centers also serve as

          8  learning centers, a place where women can find out

          9  and learn more about women, the history of women,

         10  the roles women have played in sharing the culture

         11  and the impact of oppressive forces in the lives of

         12  diverse women.  Because Women's Centers subscribe to

         13  the belief that knowledge is power, our goal is to

         14  provide the tools by which women students at CUNY

         15  may become as knowledgeable and powerful as they are

         16  able to be.

         17                 The Women's Center Council would like

         18  to emphasize the three important areas of concern

         19  based directly on the research data that my

         20  colleague at the other college had begun and my own

         21  experiences in serving students for the past 24

         22  years: The need for standardized collection of data

         23  at all CUNY campuses is imperative; we need more

         24  organized and systematic education, prevention and

         25  intervention strategies on all campuses; and lastly,
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          2  implementing these necessary, standardized

          3  strategies of research, prevention and intervention

          4  requires more support for Women's Centers on

          5  campuses.

          6                 Women's Centers provide an enormous

          7  service in not only retaining students, but helping

          8  them work towards academic success and graduation.

          9  Thank you for your interest in this vital need of

         10  our students.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  We want to thank

         12  you very much for your testimony.  You may proceed

         13  by giving us your name.

         14                 DR. BING:  I am Dr. Vanessa M. Bing.

         15  I am a member of the faculty at LaGuardia Community

         16  College.  I also serve as the Faculty Director of

         17  the Student Center for Women at LaGuardia.  I want

         18  to note that by training, I'm a licensed clinical

         19  psychologist and I've spent much of my professional

         20  life working in this area of domestic abuse and

         21  violence against women.

         22            So, I want to thank you for inviting us to

         23  this forum today to address what I think is a really

         24  significant and important issue and there have been

         25  a number of things stated already, so I just want to
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          2  highlight some of the issues that I've seen at

          3  LaGuardia and some of the challenges that I've

          4  confronted in my capacity.

          5                 Firstly, I think it's important to

          6  highlight the role of Women's Centers and counseling

          7  faculty who are working with women who are

          8  confronting these issues.  I want to say with all

          9  due respect, with the utmost respect to our

         10  counseling faculty at the various CUNY schools, one

         11  of the things that I frequently make note of is

         12  working in this area requires a significant

         13  expertise.

         14                 I think our very professional

         15  psychologists and counselors realize this and

         16  sometimes feel challenged themselves in work.  So, I

         17  want to state that one recommendation I would make

         18  right up front is that funding be provided for

         19  counseling faculty and other staff members to

         20  actually learn and receive training in how to better

         21  help support women who are victims of domestic

         22  abuse.

         23                 I would also like to make note of the

         24  fact that prior to my experience at LaGuardia

         25  Community College, I was the full- time Director of
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          2  the Women's Center at Borough of Manhattan Community

          3  College.  So, I feel I bring with me today a

          4  perspective from working at two different CUNY

          5  schools.

          6                 I will say that certainly, while, I

          7  think we all share the same issues.  Each campus has

          8  its own challenge.  At my campus, in particular,

          9  there is no full- time Director of the Women's

         10  Center; there's no full- time staff at the Women's

         11  Center. I'm sorry, Debbie Parker shared with the

         12  group that each Women's Center has a different level

         13  of organization and some are student staff.  I think

         14  she was referring to mine when she spoke to one such

         15  being staffed.

         16                 We have student volunteers who are

         17  working in our Center and, of course, that's a

         18  challenge.  What we do with our students is, I,

         19  myself, I train them to become more familiar with

         20  the issues of a very, a range of violence against

         21  women and they are trained to become advocates and

         22  supporters.  They are trained to learn about

         23  community resources.  They provide some quasi- peer

         24  counseling, but they're never allowed to provide any

         25  real in depth counseling service, which, of course,
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          2  is problematic, because most of the women who come

          3  through our doors are seeking a counselor.

          4                 Despite the fact that we do have a

          5  college counseling service, many students are

          6  reluctant to utilize the counseling service.

          7  Indeed, I, often, and I have to remind my students

          8  that they do, that my students volunteers, that they

          9  must encourage students, when possible, to go to

         10  counseling when they need this kind of support.

         11                 The reality is many students avoid

         12  counseling. They see women centers as a place where,

         13  hopefully, they can get that kind of assistance,

         14  where they can speak to people who are knowledgeable

         15  in issues that are unique to women.  Unfortunately,

         16  because many of our Centers are not fully staffed,

         17  many times they may come to our doors seeking

         18  assistance and, unfortunately, our hours are very

         19  limited.

         20                 I think we all do a tremendous job

         21  with the limited resources that we have.  I just

         22  want to highlight some of the types of programs and

         23  the efforts we make at LaGuardia. First of all, we

         24  address the issue of violence against women as a

         25  human rights issues, not simply a women's issue.
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          2  While it is a women's issue and women are greatly

          3  affected, it's a human rights issue and we want

          4  everybody on campus to know that.

          5                 There were questions earlier about

          6  cultural sensitivity.  LaGuardia is a hugely

          7  immigrant campus.  We have students speaking over a

          8  hundred different languages.  So, one of the types

          9  of workshops we do, and I facilitated myself is, I

         10  call it Cultural Dimensions of Relationships and

         11  Relationship Abuse. Part of that training is helping

         12  women and all students identify the fact that there

         13  are certain pressures within their cultures that

         14  dictate certain types of behavior, patriarchal

         15  cultures, cultures that dictate that women should be

         16  more docile and submissive and that, therefore,

         17  create the conditions for a male partner to be

         18  abusive.

         19                 So, our students are educated first

         20  and foremost. We want our students to know what is

         21  domestic violence, what is intimate partner abuse,

         22  how do you recognize it in your own life. One of the

         23  things that we also attempt to do is, we do attempt

         24  to work with the males.  This was a question that

         25  was raised earlier.  The way in which we do it at
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          2  LaGuardia is we created a group that meets weekly

          3  called Voices, where it's an opportunity for men and

          4  women to dialogue on all issues that are of concern

          5  to them and certainly relationship issues are one of

          6  the key issues that are repeatedly presented.  So,

          7  we think that's wonderful, because it is an

          8  opportunity to bring men and women together.

          9                 But, again, I have to highlight and

         10  underscore the fact that because many of these women

         11  are traumatized and have difficulty engaging with

         12  and dealing with men because of their prior

         13  experiences, you know, we have to really be very

         14  careful about creating such a forum, because then

         15  this Women's Center is no longer a safe space for

         16  some women who feel that they are, who are dealing

         17  with post- traumatic stress and other issues from

         18  having to engage with difficult relationships with

         19  men.

         20                 We have to make it clear that this is

         21  an opportunity for them to learn about some of the

         22  challenges facing men, but more importantly, it's an

         23  opportunity for men to gain greater insight into

         24  some of the dynamics between men and women.

         25                 I want to also highlight the fact
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          2  that, you know, it's important as far as a

          3  curriculum issue, because this was also raised

          4  earlier, you know, how do we introduce this, this

          5  idea?  Just earlier this week, I'm sure many of you

          6  saw it in the New York Times, Bob Herbert (phonetic)

          7  wrote a column about the, about violence against

          8  women and how in many ways in our society we've

          9  become desensitized to the whole matter.

         10                 I mean, when the situation occurred

         11  in the Amish school and in Colorado, all of the

         12  victims were girls, okay, girls were being targeted.

         13    That was not being highlighted and I think that

         14  really does speak to the fact that on some level

         15  it's, you know, we, we don't really give it the kind

         16  of thought that it deserves.

         17                 At the Women's Center at LaGuardia we

         18  really do attempt to put it at the forefront of

         19  people's minds.  We put it in their face.  We do a

         20  lot of workshops during Domestic Violence Awareness

         21  Month, throughout the year, throughout the academic

         22  year.  During the month of February, our student

         23  actors do the Vagina Monologue, which is a play by

         24  Eve Ensler, that addresses the issue of violence.

         25                 So, there are many different
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          2  activities.  But, what's foremost is that we realize

          3  that we have to educate the community to the problem

          4  and we have to begin to identify where we can get

          5  resources.  Like my colleagues, I've attempted to

          6  seek out grant funding because our Center is fully

          7  supported by monies from the College Association,

          8  which I understand comes from student fees.

          9                 We were not successful in getting

         10  grants and that's been a real problem.  So, we

         11  operate on a real shoestring budget and it's very,

         12  very difficult and it's, our students are suffering

         13  as a result.  They are coming for the help and we

         14  are providing as much resources as we are able to,

         15  given what we have, but, quite frankly, it really is

         16  not enough.

         17                 I mean, I really could go on, but I

         18  did want to share a couple of sentiments from

         19  students.  There's a  -- excuse me  --  there was a

         20  young women who I had the opportunity to deal with.

         21  It was a 24 year old Puerto Rican woman who had an

         22  abusive boyfriend, who was the father of her seven

         23  year old daughter and like many of our students, she

         24  was reluctant to report him to the police for

         25  obvious reasons.  She was afraid of the potential
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          2  repercussions.  She didn't know what she would do as

          3  far as finances.

          4                 Actually, that's something that I

          5  don't think we've highlighted.  You know, many of

          6  these abuses, while many, the violence, physical

          7  violence, there's all kinds of emotional and

          8  financial abuses, you know, the threat of

          9  withholding money. This one woman who was very

         10  reluctant to report her partner because she didn't

         11  have a job, her, there was some question about her,

         12  you know documentation status, she's an immigrant.

         13  She was afraid of being deported and not having any

         14  money.  These are real challenges facing our

         15  students.

         16                 I've had students report back to me

         17  that their boyfriend totally trashed their

         18  computers, so they couldn't do their schoolwork.  I

         19  had a student talking about she was being stalked,

         20  so she stopped coming to school because she was

         21  afraid of her stalker.  So, it's just sort of one

         22  story, one very sad story after the next.  You know,

         23  it goes without saying that we need staffing, which

         24  requires money, we need to train our professional

         25  counselors and other staff and provide these
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          2  professional development workshops.

          3                 It goes without saying we need to

          4  collaborate with other areas of the college and I

          5  think many of us are attempting to do so.  At my

          6  college, we're talking about working with the Black

          7  Male Initiative and perhaps, you know, creating a

          8  group called something like Brothers Against

          9  Domestic Abuse, having men act as advocates.  So,

         10  we're looking at creative ways.  We need help.  One

         11  of our  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Can I ask you to

         13  begin to summarize, because I, we have to leave here

         14  at 3:30 and I did want  --

         15                 DR. BING:  Okay, well, I just  --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --   To get the

         17  student panel on.

         18                 DR. BING:  I think I've said enough

         19  and I think that sort of paints the picture.  Our

         20  students are looking for our assistance and think

         21  they know that if they could not have the experience

         22  of violence in their life, that they could retain

         23  their student status and do well in life and in

         24  their careers. So, certainly, we would appreciate

         25  anything and everything the Council can offer and
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          2  thank you for giving me the opportunity to make this

          3  statement.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Thank you for

          5  your testimony. Appreciate it.  You may proceed with

          6  your testimony, but start by giving us your name for

          7  the record, and title.

          8                 REVEREND JONES:  My name is Reverend

          9  Gale Jones. I am currently a volunteer consultant

         10  with the Center for Women's Development.  I'm

         11  actually here to read an excerpted portion of the

         12  testimony of Professor Safiya Bandele, who has not

         13  been able to attend today because of a family

         14  emergency.

         15                 One of the things I'd like to say

         16  before I read portions of her testimony is this,

         17  that in the five years that I have worked with her

         18  at the Center, the Center has been the primary focus

         19  at Medgar Evers College with regard to counseling.

         20  That means that anyone that needs counseling

         21  services came through that Center.

         22                 My primary, one of the primary things

         23  I was responsible for was working with young people,

         24  or students who identified as lesbian, gay, bisexual

         25  or transgender.  In that, in each of those cases, in
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          2  each academic year, they've been involved in

          3  domestic violence situations and because of the way

          4  society has established, have refused and not wanted

          5  to go to Public Safety, and so we all understood

          6  that and so when you asked the question earlier

          7  about, what about the incidents of non- reported

          8  cases, I can testify that there are cases of

          9  domestic violence that occurs on the campus that

         10  don't go through, go through those channels.

         11                 The other thing I'd like say with

         12  regard to the Women's Center on last year, at the

         13  end of the academic year last year, President

         14  Jackson made a pledge to the Center for Women's

         15  Development, which is now celebrating its 25th year,

         16  for the first time, will have its own physical space

         17  in terms of, where women can come for a place of

         18  safety.  So, I just wanted to add that before I

         19  begin to read portions of her testimony.

         20                 One of the things is that, she says

         21  that her testimony draws on her experiences as the

         22  former Chair of Medgar Evers College Committee for

         23  Sexual Harassment.  She's a current member of the

         24  Sexual Harassment Policy and Intake Committee, Chair

         25  of the Workplace Violence Prevention Policy
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          2  Committee and Chair of the Women's Services

          3  Committee, as well as discussions with colleagues on

          4  campus, with CUNY Women's Centers, directors and

          5  community- based organizations.

          6                 What she says in her testimony is

          7  that the projection of students on Medgar's campus.

          8  Who are involved with domestic violence is somewhere

          9  between 40 and 60 percent.  In the spring of 2005,

         10  Medgar Evers completed over a year's work in

         11  drafting a policy on domestic violence.  The

         12  principal offices consulted for input and review

         13  includes the Office of Public Safety, Cultural

         14  Diversity and Staff Development, College Health

         15  Services, Counseling Services, Center for Law and

         16  Social Justice and Department of Nursing.  Off-

         17  campus reviewers included the 71st Precinct Domestic

         18  Violence Officers, CUNY Queens Law School, Connect

         19  and Break the Cycle.

         20                 At Medgar Evers College, the College

         21  Adjustment Scale survey administered to incoming

         22  students in freshmen seminars in fall 2000, screens

         23  and identifies common psychological college

         24  adjustment issues faced by students that might

         25  contribute to attrition.  Conclusion: Depression is
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          2  17.4 percent, anxiety 22.8 percent and suicidal

          3  ideation 18.6 percent were common to almost all the

          4  groups of students studied.             At the

          5  Center for Women's Development, the psychosocial

          6  counseling is provided by one to two MSW interns

          7  from CUNY graduate school and the Office of Public

          8  Safety reports incidents involving orders of

          9  protection.

         10                 Just an overview of the policy, the

         11  draft policy at Medgar Evers, it references

         12  initially its definition of domestic violence and it

         13  says that domestic violence is defined as a pattern

         14  of abuse by one person against another, which

         15  includes but is not limited to husband against wife

         16  or vice versa, boyfriend against girlfriend or vice

         17  versa, over the age of 18 vice versa, sibling

         18  violence, intimate partner and same sex violence.

         19                 Domestic violence may be exhibited in

         20  the following ways:  Cycle, physical abuse, economic

         21  abuse, education abuse, emotional or psychological

         22  abuse and sexual abuse.  CUNY students experience

         23  all of these forms of abuse.  Education abuse

         24  continues to have significant retention issues for

         25  the majority of women CUNY population, which, at
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          2  Medgar Evers, happens to be 75.9 percent.

          3  Specifically, they experience not being allowed to

          4  study, being prevented from attending classes,

          5  beatings before exams, hiding and destroying class

          6  assignments and not being allowed to purchase books

          7  and supplies.

          8                 The draft policy recommends a campus

          9  team comprised of a full- time domestic abuse

         10  coordinator, a full- time domestic violence

         11  counselor, staff, students and faculty.   The

         12  response team must be adequately trained to deal

         13  with victims of domestic violence and this should

         14  include but not be limited to assessments, safety

         15  planning, victim rights and referrals. Connections

         16  should also be made with relevant community

         17  resources such as health care providers, domestic

         18  violence providers law enforcement, et cetera, in

         19  order to effectively respond to the issues related

         20  to domestic violence.

         21                 Professor Bandele makes a few

         22  recommendations. One, she says, just with regard to

         23  CUNY, overall, is that there should be a creation

         24  and implementation of a community domestic violence

         25  policy.  Secondly, there should be education of
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          2  students, staff and faculty.  There should be

          3  training for Public Safety Officers and other

          4  relevant college staff; hiring and/or increasing

          5  mental health and counseling staff and counseling

          6  officers and the Women's Centers; hiring and/or

          7  improving release time for faculty to research on

          8  domestic violence.  Lastly, she recommends that

          9  funding to support the critically important domestic

         10  violence research by our own Dr. Katie Gentile and

         11  her colleague, Dr. Chitra Raghavan at John Jay

         12  College.

         13                 In summary, for the past several

         14  years, Dr. Edison O. Jackson, President of Medgar

         15  Evers College, has issued a proclamation, declaring

         16  Medgar Evers College as a violence-free zone. This

         17  annual programmatic campaign connects the dots

         18  linking the structural roots of racism, sexism,

         19  xenophobia, homophobia, heterosexism, economic

         20  inequality to the branches: Poverty; unemployment;

         21  domestic violence; intimate partner violence; police

         22  brutality; hate crimes; and racial disparity in

         23  incarceration rates.

         24                 This macro view enables Medgar Evers

         25  College to then focus specifically on the micro,
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          2  that is domestic violence, intimate partner

          3  violence, not only for the attrition and retention

          4  ramifications, but the intrinsic human rights to a

          5  violence- free CUNY in a violence- free world.

          6                 On behalf of Professor Bendele, I

          7  thank you for this opportunity.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Well, first of

          9  all, we thank all of you for your testimony.  It's

         10  going to be extremely helpful for us to formulate

         11  some legislation and at the same time, push for

         12  higher prioritization of budget considerations when

         13  it comes to CUNY and this City Council.  So, I want

         14  to thank you so much.  We will take all of this

         15  testimony and we'll be getting back to people on the

         16  results of this Hearing as to some strategies and

         17  tactics we can all come together as a team and deal

         18  with.  Thank you very much  --

         19                 REVEREND JONES:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  For your

         21  testimony.  You want to ask a question?  Oh, hold

         22  one second.  Sorry about that Lew.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you Mr.

         24  Chairman. I, you know, I was sitting next door in

         25  the Housing and Buildings Committee Hearing, which
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          2  was on the electrical code.  That didn't quite give

          3  me the charge that it should of, so, bad pun.

          4                 I realized that you were holding this

          5  Hearing and, in fact, as was mentioned earlier, as

          6  Chairman of the Youth Services Committee, we've held

          7  a couple of Hearings on this precise topic as it

          8  relates to young people going through New York City

          9  public schools and we've heard testimony from Break

         10  the Cycle and Connect and groups like that.  So, I

         11  am truly interested in this topic and I wanted to

         12  see what you all have to say.

         13                 What I haven't heard anything

         14  directly about is outreach.  You know, it's

         15  wonderful to have a Women's Center. It's wonderful

         16  to have counseling.  It's wonderful to have a

         17  program, but, typically, in the case of intimate

         18  partner violence or domestic violence or dating

         19  abuse, the victim first has to be educated to the

         20  fact that the behavior is actually unacceptable. In

         21  many cases, they have been brought up in a household

         22  or in an environment where they saw it everyday and

         23  that's why, you know, it's happening to them and

         24  it's not unusual.  So, first as part of that

         25  outreach, for them to understand that what's
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          2  happening to them is wrong.

          3                 But, second, that there's a place for

          4  them to go. You know, people don't wake up one

          5  morning, many, some do, but I'm sure many don't, and

          6  say, I'm going to go into the Women's Center today

          7  and get some counseling about what's going on in my

          8  interpersonal relationship, very possibly off-

          9  campus, in my non student life.

         10                 So, my question for you is, on your

         11  campuses, what's done to, I guess, more importantly,

         12  the outreach component to let people know that there

         13  is, in fact, a place on campus for them to go, not

         14  just to, the people that are smart enough to figure

         15  it out for themselves, but what kind of

         16  communication is being made, what efforts are being

         17  made, to let people know there is a place to go?

         18                 REVEREND JONES:  If I may, as I

         19  indicated in the summary of Professor's testimony,

         20  is that for the last three years we've had this

         21  proclamation and what happens is that we actually do

         22  this.  Having been an active part of that, we

         23  actually go into what would be consider, I guess,

         24  the quad, so to speak, at Medgar Evers.  And, for a

         25  five day period, we bring people in to talk about
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          2  specifically about these issues of violence across

          3  of the span of what it looks like.

          4                 In addition to that, as a part of the

          5  freshmen seminar, they also make, they also, there's

          6  sort or an education about the Women's Center exists

          7  for this and, of course, now, they have the partner,

          8  the Male Empowerment Development Center. Also, part

          9  of my job is that I link things with, I'm the sort

         10  of community link, so to speak, and for all of the

         11  tenure of the Professor's time there, it, part of

         12  the mission of the Women's Center is being very

         13  deeply connected with the community.

         14                 Lastly, as a part of this new

         15  initiative, so to speak, in terms of empowering

         16  change through women, is that there's currently now

         17  a lecture series.  So, everyone in the college knows

         18  that if you need counseling, you need assistance,

         19  that the Women's Center is safe regardless of what

         20  your gender, expression, you can come to the Women's

         21  Center.  So, in that respect there is a proactive

         22  approach to making people aware that here you can

         23  come and be safe.

         24                 So, and as I indicated, we respect

         25  the need or the request of students not to do that,
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          2  but we're also making certain that we're still

          3  helping them to plan for safety around those issues

          4  so we don't leave them out to dry.

          5                 DR. BING:  I would also like to share

          6  that at LaGuardia, one of the things that we've

          7  implemented is during opening sessions, that's

          8  basically like a freshmen orientation series of, a

          9  day long of orientation to the college, they learn

         10  about the various offices in the college, they learn

         11  about the Women's Center and all of the other

         12  support staff, support offices on campus.  This is

         13  reinforced in the freshmen orientation course.

         14                 Also on campus, we have our e- mail

         15  communication system.  So, whenever the Women's

         16  Center is sponsoring an event, we, some, this

         17  information is available on the college website, e-

         18  mail is sent to all faculty and staff so they could

         19  announce it in their classroom or post a flyer on

         20  campus.

         21                 We have students distributing

         22  handouts, we have students ambassadors, if you will.

         23    We have, you know, we certainly have, we invite

         24  people from the local community agencies who do this

         25  type of work and they are part of our speakers
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          2  bureau, if you will.

          3                 Again, there are these periods during

          4  the academic year, for example, Domestic Violence

          5  Awareness Month.  In February, we do the Vagina

          6  Monologue.  During women's history month, we often

          7  do a series of workshops.  So, things are, I think,

          8  well publicized on campus and available on the

          9  college website.

         10                 I think our great challenge is we put

         11  the information out there and because we have

         12  limited resources in terms of the physical space and

         13  number of hours operating, a lot of times, outside

         14  of these planned scheduled workshops and

         15  presentations, we, you know, are inundated with

         16  students coming by and that we can't meet the needs

         17  of those students.  So, we have to, it's a delicate

         18  balance.  We make the information available, but we

         19  need the infrastructure that will really allow for,

         20  you know, serving the population.

         21                 DR. MILLER:  Thank you so much for

         22  the question. I think at Kingsborough we are very

         23  much in the same boat.  It's a slippery slope that

         24  when we do outreach to the community, truly we are

         25  inundated.  One student said, can I tell my friend
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          2  about you? And I said sure and I realized that one

          3  friend tells another friend and because of the

          4  prevalence of intimate partner violence, I'm seeing

          5  four people that are not students.  I quickly had to

          6  put a stop to that, because it can multiply.

          7                 So, we know that there's a diverse

          8  community at Kingsborough.  What we do quite often

          9  is to invite people from groups such as Asian

         10  Women's Center, Safe Horizon, Saki, which is for

         11  southeast Asian women, get them to come to campus

         12  and actually to be there for a couple of hours and

         13  work with some of the students from those diverse

         14  areas.  But, I think that rather than have women

         15  come and say that they need services and not be able

         16  to provide, I think we all, with limited time, I'm

         17  there 40 hours a week, with limited time and funding

         18  and space, that we'd rather err on the side of

         19  caution.

         20                 The other thing is that you had

         21  mentioned that nobody wakes up in the morning and

         22  says today I'm going to go to the Women's Center.  I

         23  think that's indeed what does happen. Last June, I

         24  had a women say, look through the doors, the glass

         25  doors and say, I've been walking by for three months
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          2  and I never had enough courage to come in, but I

          3  need help because he's beating the crap out of me,

          4  can you help me.  That's exactly what it was and we

          5  did help her.  Thank you.

          6                 PROFESSOR GENTILE:  Just quickly, I

          7  would, I would echo what everyone said in terms of

          8  outreach and preventing.  I also wrote the chapter

          9  that's used in our freshmen orientation class, but

         10  it is, again, we may have, I don't know, 20 adjuncts

         11  teaching it.  There's no quality, I mean, how do we

         12  know how it's being taught and it's one class, one

         13  class, which echoes what I said earlier, which is

         14  more apt to lead to backlash.

         15                 But, we do, I do all freshmen

         16  orientations.  I do, I go to many freshman classes

         17  to teach that.  We have bulletin boards that have

         18  flyers information, referral information. Tabling,

         19  we table in the busiest corridor.  I also work with

         20  Day One, which is formerly Break the Cycle and they

         21  have developed a peer leadership program on our

         22  campus, your campus, other campuses, that helps

         23  lessen the load, as well as get students actively

         24  involved in training other students and going to

         25  high schools and they'll probably speak in a second.
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          2                 I meet with all faculty.  I attempt

          3  to meet -- again, this is -- I am a faculty member,

          4  part-time Director, so in all that time I do as much

          5  outreach as I can while, as we've said, doing the

          6  service for the -- that the outreach creates. So,

          7  it's a double-edged sword.

          8                 We do a lot of stuff and I also try

          9  to engage men, because, unfortunately, as this

         10  shows, I mean, the women can't be the ones to stop

         11  it, because we're not the ones hitting ourselves,

         12  usually, usually.  So, that's clear.  We do a lot of

         13  outreach, but we need a lot more support.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Thank you very

         15  much.  Lew, that's it?  Thank you very much for your

         16  testimony.  We appreciate it greatly.  Thank you.

         17  And our next panel.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Joe Samalin,

         19  Stella Dorsey, Joleen McIntosh, Stephanie Nilva.

         20                 MS. NILVA:  Good afternoon.  My name

         21  is Stephanie Nilva and I'm the Executive Director of

         22  Day One, which is formerly Break the Cycle  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Slow down

         24  Stephanie, we do have  --

         25                 MS. NILVA:  I apologize.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  To swear you

          3  in.  Just hold one second.

          4                 MS. NILVA:  I know you're over time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  I see you're on

          6  it.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Raise your

          8  right hands.  Do you swear that the testimony that

          9  you're about to give is accurate and truthful?

         10                 MS. NILVA:  Yes.

         11                 MS. DORSEY:  Yes.

         12                 MS. McINTOSH:  Yes.

         13                 MR. SAMALIN:  Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Now, Stephanie,

         15  you can speed it up and go for it now.

         16                 MS. NILVA:  My name is Stephanie

         17  Nilva.  I'm the Executive Director of Day One, which

         18  is formerly Break the Cycle New York.  I'm here with

         19  Joe Samalin, who's the Peer Leadership Coordinator

         20  for Day One, with Joleen McIntosh and Stella Dorsey,

         21  who are John Jay students and Day One Peer Leaders.

         22                 I want to thank the City Council and

         23  the Committee on Higher Education and also I do want

         24  to acknowledge Council Member Fidler for the

         25  Hearings that he's held in the past on teen dating
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          2  violence, which we took part in two years ago.

          3                 Day One is here because we're the

          4  only New York organization that's focused solely on

          5  the issue of relationship abuse among youth and it's

          6  critically important to have an organization like

          7  that, because the experiences of youth related to

          8  domestic violence are very specific and unique.

          9                 They are subject to profound levels

         10  of peer pressure.  They're in their very first

         11  relationships, new relationships that create

         12  unfamiliar territory for them and they have a deep

         13  and abiding mistrust of authority at all levels,

         14  whether it's within their schools or within the

         15  police department or the legal system.

         16                 Through three programs, Day One works

         17  to empower students to interrupt the cycle of

         18  violence through prevention and also to assist young

         19  people who are already experiencing abuse.  Our

         20  community education programs brings us into public

         21  schools and community- based organizations.  We

         22  train not only youth, but also professionals.  We

         23  train teachers, faculty members, school

         24  administrators and parents all around the issue of

         25  identifying intimate partner violence and responding
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          2  to it in a proper way.

          3                 We, our Legal Services program

          4  advocates for youth in the family and criminal court

          5  systems and assists young people with accessing

          6  other legal orders that are going to help them

          7  achieve safety.  Lastly, our Peer Leadership

          8  program, which you're going to hear more about

          9  briefly from Joe Samalin, organizes on CUNY campuses

         10  and develops leadership skills among college

         11  students who are building awareness on their

         12  campuses, among their peers and in their community

         13  about dating abuse and domestic violence.  Thank you

         14  again.

         15                 MR. SAMALIN:  Good afternoon.  I want

         16  to echo the thanks to the City Council Members, CUNY

         17  students, faculty and staff who are here and thank

         18  you for the opportunity to speak today.  I will keep

         19  it very brief.  I know that I want to respect

         20  everybody's time here and also allow our Peer

         21  Leaders ample time to speak.

         22                 Peer Leadership program at Day One

         23  organizes college students, as was said, to develop

         24  awareness activities about dating abuse and domestic

         25  violence in their campuses as well as on their
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          2  communities.  Peer Leaders are trained extensively

          3  at Day One and then we work closely with them to

          4  come up with creative and original ways to do

          5  effective education and outreach with their peers.

          6  They work as leaders, the next generation of leaders

          7  in the movement to really end domestic violence, not

          8  only to work with victims who need a lot more

          9  support and resources, as is.

         10                 First question that I usually ask

         11  peer leaders at a given CUNY, at the beginning of

         12  training, is what resources are available on- campus

         13  and off- campus for students in an abusive

         14  relationship who need immediate intervention or have

         15  general questions.  Surprising to me, every

         16  semester, very few students are aware of any answers

         17  to that question.

         18                 There isn't enough, the resources at

         19  CUNY, they are there  --  excuse me  --  there are

         20  resources at CUNY available in terms of domestic

         21  violence and the other issues we heard about today,

         22  most commonly, as we heard, in the form of

         23  counseling services, Women's Centers where they

         24  exist, health centers and sometimes individual

         25  academic departments or administrative departments.
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          2  Still, every campus is different in what they offer

          3  and how services are delivered.

          4                 Peer leaders table on campus.  They

          5  go into classes and do presentations co-facilitating

          6  with Day One staff or on their own.  They do

          7  outreach, liaisoning the student body, their peers,

          8  their friends, their classmates with the resources

          9  that are on campus and for those that don't feel

         10  comfortable going on a campus for a variety of

         11  reasons, to organizations like Day One off- campus.

         12                 I have met numerous staff represented

         13  here by some of the people we work very closely with

         14  in CUNY who are tirelessly dedicated to creating

         15  less violent campuses.  However, the services are

         16  too far and, few and far between for reasons that we

         17  already heard to.  It leads to confusion, which our

         18  Peer Leaders will speak to and students suffer not

         19  only from lack of resources and support, but also

         20  the fact that there are times when the

         21  Administration doesn't seem to acknowledge the level

         22  of support that is needed on the issue.

         23                 There is, as Council Member Martinez

         24  alluded to, no unified consistent training or policy

         25  dealing with youth facing abusive relationships at
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          2  CUNY overall and there's only one individual policy

          3  we know of at Medgar Evers College, we took part in

          4  advising on that policy, as well as in the annual

          5  violent, Medgar Evers is a Violence-Free Zone event.

          6                 Individuals on CUNY campuses,

          7  therefore, ask us to help train staff,

          8  Administration and students.  Queensborough

          9  Community College, we train the head, through them,

         10  we train the heads of all counseling at all CUNY

         11  schools on the issue.  We were invited to do the

         12  same recently with heads of student activities at

         13  all CUNY schools.

         14                 We work closely with Kingsborough

         15  Community College Women's Center and Mental Health

         16  and Human Services Department.  We do, they do

         17  original presentations on campus in classes, as

         18  Professor Seabrook said, tying it into all of the

         19  other parts of the curriculum available.

         20                 John Jay College of Criminal Justice

         21  has asked us to partner with them, co- facilitate

         22  with our Peer Leaders and us on trainings for their

         23  adult counselors and student peer counselors.

         24                 One powerful way to address the issue

         25  would be with a comprehensive, consistent
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          2  community-based genuide (phonetic) policy specific

          3  to intimate partner violence, which would mandate

          4  training for staff and Administration, create

          5  protocols as well, for how to handle incidents of

          6  domestic violence as a start.

          7                 Such a policy must be created

          8  collaboratively with input from all key stakeholders

          9  on CUNY campuses and, most importantly, it must

         10  include the voice of CUNY students who are aware of

         11  the issue, including student leaders, advocates and

         12  survivors.

         13                 Day One looks forward to continuing

         14  our work with the City Council, with CUNY central,

         15  all of the individual campuses we've worked with and

         16  the incredible individuals, again, some of whom are

         17  here, on the front lines of the struggle to end

         18  domestic violence at CUNY and, most importantly, the

         19  CUNY students, for whom the issue is an unfortunate

         20  and unforgivable reality every day of their lives.

         21                 I'm happy to answer any questions and

         22  happy to pass it over to Joleen and Stella.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Thank you for

         24  your testimony.

         25                 MS. McINTOSH:  Good afternoon.  My
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          2  name is Joleen McIntosh and I'm currently a senior

          3  at John Jay College, majoring in criminal justice.

          4  I'm currently interning for Day One, through John

          5  Jay, as a Peer Leader.  So, now, I, myself, am a

          6  resource for students at John Jay specifically on

          7  the issue of domestic violence.  I'm here to share

          8  with you my knowledge and experience with the

          9  resources John Jay has to offer.

         10                 As far resources available, there are

         11  three main places students can go for information,

         12  help and more.  There's the Counseling Department.

         13  The Women's Center and the Health Center.  All of

         14  these places are very well equipped and

         15  knowledgeable in their field and are very helpful

         16  and effective. However, there are still problems

         17  with them.  They're not very well located,

         18  especially the Health Center.  I know it took me

         19  forever to find out where it was.

         20                 Their services are not known.

         21  Students are not aware of the actual services and

         22  resources that these departments or centers offer.

         23  The staff of each center, not, they do not

         24  necessarily know details about other resources.

         25                 Like students, staff are not aware
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          2  about what types of services are offered and by what

          3  place on campus.  This is a huge problem that needs

          4  to be dealt with.  There are resources, but they're

          5  not well advertised.

          6                 Speaking from personal experience, I

          7  knew that John Jay had these resources, but I didn't

          8  know what types of services were offered.  During my

          9  junior year, I found myself in a situation where I

         10  needed help and advice because I thought I was

         11  pregnant.  However, of course, the first place that

         12  came to mind was the Counseling Department.  So, I

         13  went there and actually explained my whole situation

         14  and then after, she told me that that was not where

         15  I needed to be.  I needed to go to the Women's

         16  Center.

         17                 So, I went to the Women's Center and

         18  there I met Katie Gentile, who's here, I guess now

         19  is gone.  She helped me a lot, but, however, when it

         20  came down to it, that was still not where I needed

         21  to go.  I was then referred to the Health, so I was

         22  passed through three different departments before I

         23  actually found out where I needed to be.

         24                 I mean that, for me, that, for my

         25  problem, I didn't feel good about that, as far as to
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          2  keep on repeating myself, telling everyone what my

          3  problem was before someone could help me and I know

          4  a lot of other students probably are going through

          5  this right now.

          6                 Where am I? Okay.  It was very, it

          7  was a very embarrassing situation, basically, for

          8  me, to do that.  Now, interning at Day One, my

          9  knowledge has grown about these different resources

         10  and what each one specializes in.  What I would like

         11  to see John Jay do is John Jay advertising that they

         12  offer these services, where they're located and what

         13  services there is.

         14                 There are opportunities such as

         15  freshmen orientation and all the different events

         16  John Jay puts on at different times.  They can also

         17  use flyers on bulletin boards and actual ones that

         18  students can see and read and are not hidden.

         19                 As a Peer Leader at Day One, I have

         20  already taken a concrete step towards increasing

         21  students' awareness on interpersonal and domestic

         22  violence and the resources available. I would be

         23  honored to continue to work with John Jay, CUNY

         24  Administration, Day One and the City Council, to

         25  inform as many CUNY students as possible about the
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          2  resources available to them regarding domestic

          3  violence.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  No, thank you

          5  very much for sharing very personal testimony and we

          6  certainly will take it very, very seriously.

          7                 I'm glad that Vice- Chancellor Moore

          8  is still here. So, I want to give him a lot of

          9  credit for staying to hear your testimony.  You

         10  know, sometimes administrators leave right after

         11  they do their testimony.  But, to see him still here

         12  and I noticed he was listening very intently.  So,

         13  thank you for sharing.  You may proceed.

         14                 MS. DORSEY:  Thank you for allowing

         15  me to speak today.  My name is Stella Dorsey.  I'm a

         16  senior at John Jay.  I'm also a Peer Leader at Day

         17  One.  I'm here to share, just want to, just a story.

         18    My friend, a really close friend of mine is in a

         19  current relationship.  She is being verbally and

         20  physically abused.  She doesn't have anywhere to go

         21  for them.

         22                 She was in jeopardy of not graduating

         23  because she was scared to come to school because she

         24  was trying to avoid her partner.  She didn't have,

         25  she didn't have any teachers to go to. She didn't
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          2  have anybody in the facility, any faculty to go to,

          3  to basically speak about her problem.  Maybe she

          4  could get help as far as, you know, trying to get

          5  her grades up or how to avoid the situation, so on

          6  and so forth, education information.

          7                 I believe that she, not that she

          8  didn't know what she was doing or she didn't

          9  technically know where to go for them, she just

         10  didn't have the awareness of it.  Like, John Jay, we

         11  table at John Jay every week.  I see how much the

         12  Women's Center tries to put the information out

         13  there, it's just not very, it's not presented well,

         14  but people don't go to it, they're not attracted to

         15  those kind of places, because it's not, they don't

         16  feel like it's a place for them to go to.

         17                 So, I think that if we try to put

         18  more information out there, have it more appealing

         19  to the, to John Jay students, that maybe it will be

         20  a better place for them to go and a more place for

         21  them to feel comfortable to go to.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Thank you very

         23  much.  That's going to be very helpful.  I think

         24  this is what Council Member Fidler was talking

         25  about, the outreach.  If you could, I know you
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          2  mentioned the bulletin boards as one possible thing.

          3    But, maybe you can help us and just give us some

          4  recommendations on what that outreach should look

          5  like, even the language or how a flyer might look or

          6  some ways that it can be done better, because nobody

          7  knows better than you.  You know what you're going

          8  to read on that bulletin board and you know what

          9  you're going to pass by and not pay any attention

         10  to.

         11                 The larger questions that you raised

         12  will be our responsibility to get some money and

         13  some resources in there, so we can all do it better.

         14  Council Member Fidler, do you have any?

         15                 Thank you so much for your testimony

         16  and, in the future, I'm going to put you on first,

         17  so you don't have to rush through your testimony and

         18  you could take your time and be around everybody for

         19  them to hear it.  But, believe me, it's much

         20  appreciated and valued and will be used.  Thank you

         21  so much for your testimony.

         22                 MS. NILVA:  Thank you Chairman

         23  Barron.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Next panel.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Darlene
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          2  Torres, Zina Richardson, Chitra Raghavan.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  While they're

          4  being assembled, Vice- Chancellor Moore, did you

          5  want to say something to the student panel?  You can

          6  have a seat.

          7                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  Thank you

          8  Mr. Chairman.  I just wanted to thank the students

          9  for coming forward and making such, such a positive

         10  contribution towards addressing this issue. As I was

         11  sitting there, I was thinking that, you know, we own

         12  a TV station, the CUNY system does, so there's a

         13  resource  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  It's true.

         15                 VICE- CHANCELLOR MOORE:  --  We can

         16  use to help get the word out and to do that.  So,

         17  thank you so much and I will work with them to do

         18  that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Thank you.

         20                 MS. TORRES:  Hi.  Sorry.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Raise your

         22  right hand please.  Do you swear that the testimony

         23  that you are about to give will be truthful and

         24  honest?

         25                 MS. TORRES:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  You may

          3  proceed.

          4                 MS. TORRES:  I'm all alone up here.

          5  Thank you for the opportunity to testify.  My name

          6  again is Darlene Torres and I am with the New York

          7  City Gay and Lesbian Anti- Violence Project.  I was

          8  very impressed with all the work that is being done

          9  around intimate partner violence in the various

         10  schools.

         11                 Just about outreach, the Anti-

         12  Violence Project provides training and education

         13  around intimate partner violence as it affects the

         14  lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender communities.

         15  So, that is another way in which this information is

         16  disseminated out into the communities.

         17                 Intimate partner violence is a very

         18  serious concern for the New York City Gay and

         19  Lesbian Anti- Violence Project.  A significant

         20  number of our cases are IPV cases.  I'm sorry  --

         21  within this group, the numbers of youth under the

         22  age of 22 who report to us increases each year,

         23  partly due to a relatively new youth outreach and

         24  education program at AVP and also increase the

         25  awareness about LGBT issues.
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          2                 We ask that in your consideration of

          3  college responses to IPV, that you do not overlook

          4  the LGBT communities. AVP has had extensive

          5  experience in educating colleges and universities on

          6  issues regarding LGBT IPV.

          7                 Studies show several alarming trends

          8  affecting the rates of same gender IPV in relation

          9  to college-age youth. First, youth are coming out at

         10  earlier times in their lives than ever before.  In

         11  studies regarding lesbians and IPV, they found that

         12  most of their respondents experienced IPV within

         13  their first relationship.

         14                 Because many youth during college

         15  also experience their first same gender

         16  relationships, this finding is very serious.  Also,

         17  when people come out, they're often isolated from

         18  their former support networks due to both

         19  internalized and societal homophobia.  This

         20  increases the risk of experiences, experiencing IPV.

         21                 Also, most service providers,

         22  including those on college campuses, do not address

         23  LGBT IPV and many do not create welcoming spaces for

         24  LGBT individuals, creating a significant gap in

         25  services for our communities.
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          2                 In closing, I want to thank you again

          3  for allowing me to testify and would like to say

          4  that AVP is more than happy to discuss this further

          5  and provide more information, if necessary or

          6  needed.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Well, you know,

          8  we know we saved the best for last.  So, we thank

          9  you so much for your testimony  --

         10                 MS. TORRES:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  And

         12  certainly anything that you can give to the

         13  Committee in writing, any recommendations, we will

         14  take it very, very seriously.  Once again, the Vice-

         15  Chancellor was here to hear your testimony  --

         16                 MS. TORRES:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  And

         18  certainly my Committee will be, it will be

         19  communicated to my community.  So, anything you want

         20  to submit in writing to us, we would take it very,

         21  very serious.

         22                 MS. TORRES:  I will definitely do

         23  that if I know, this was last minute, so if I could

         24  get that information  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  Sure.
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          2                 MS. TORRES:  --  Then I will

          3  definitely send it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  By all means,

          5  you can see Joy Simmons, she's my staff person or

          6  any one of the policy analysts or  --

          7                 MS. TORRES:  Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  --  The Counsel

          9  up here.

         10                 MS. TORRES:  Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:  I want to thank

         12  all of you. I think we had a great testimony, a

         13  great Hearing.  We're going to gather all of this

         14  information with recommendations and put some legs

         15  on this, which is legislation and money, and see if

         16  we can get CUNY to do like a CUNY- wide policy,

         17  because this is mostly for workplace violence.

         18  There's not a real CUNY- wide policy on this

         19  particular issue, making it more narrow.

         20                 So, hopefully, out of this Hearing,

         21  will come a CUNY- wide policy, will come more

         22  funding and come better structures in CUNY having

         23  more Women's Centers and students being outreached

         24  more.  And, if we have to do a part two, to get some

         25  stuff together, we're willing to do that as well.
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          2  But, thank you so much.

          3                 That concludes this Hearing.  This

          4  Hearing is adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 3:55 p.m.)
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